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PART 1: GENERAL INFORMATION

1.1. Foreword by Minister of Trade and Industry

The consumer market place is indeed a better place since the 

establishment of the National Consumer Commission (NCC) four 

years ago. Despite the initial teething problems, I am pleased 

to announce that the NCC has grown both in size and in stature 

to become the well-oiled regulatory machine that it is today. As 

government we recognise that to enable consumers to obtain 

redress, a coherent, adequately resourced and easily accessible 

infrastructure with effective enforcement mechanisms must 

exist, together with a comprehensive legislative framework 

that affords basic rights to consumers, and set out guiding 

principles for market conduct.

The Department of Trade and Industry (the dti), in drafting 

the Consumer Protection Act (CPA), followed an international 

trend to enable the Republic of South Africa to join the ranks of 

a number of countries that were moving towards developing 

comprehensive consumer laws that give consumers rights, 

upfront. As such, the underpinning objective of the CPA is to instead of channelling consumers to seek redress 

through a costly, constrained, complex and time consuming criminal and civil justice system, afford them an easily 

accessible, cost free alternative. 

Appropriate and consumer-friendly policies relating to trade, competition, intellectual property and the environment 

are all critical in ensuring that markets work to the benefit of consumers. Competitive domestic markets ensure 

that consumers have access to choice and competitive prices. Fair and open markets also drive innovation, product 

quality and competitiveness. On the other hand, unbalanced terms of trade can have negative consequences for 

consumers and for the economies of developing countries, they can result in unsafe products, counterfeit and 

substandard goods. In addition, unregulated industrial production processes can result in unsustainable production 

and consumption patterns, improper labelling and disclosure and lack of traceability. The CPA addresses all these 

concerns. 

Consistent with the provisions of the CPA, I recently accredited ombud schemes and prescribed industry codes of 

conduct for both the Motor and the Consumer Goods and Services Industries. The accreditation of these schemes 

marks the beginning of a co-regulation arrangement between the dti and the private sector. These industries, 

with the outlook of regulating interaction between their clientele and suppliers, agreed to establish and fund the 

respective ombud schemes at no cost to the consumer. South African consumers can now seek redress from their 

respective provincial consumer protection authorities, courts, as well as these ombud schemes. 

I have noted that the NCC has steadily begun increasing its role in protecting consumers from hazardous products. 

A number of suppliers have thus far collaborated with the NCC in recalling and removing hazardous products from 

the market place. In the same vein, the collaboration between the National Regulator for Compulsory Specifications 

and the NCC in this regard is very encouraging.

The NCC has over the last year tremendously increased its visibility. Its participation in consumer programmes on 

both national and community media is encouraging. Consumer journalists throughout the country have played 

a vital in this, and have been most helpful in raising consumer awareness through their respective mass media 

platforms. 

Minister: Dr Rob Davies, MP
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It remains paramount that the Commission continue to target its efforts at issues that have a significant impact on 

the economic circumstances of vulnerable consumers. In this regard it is envisaged that this notion will be advanced 

through various outreach programmes and  performance enhancing initiatives that result from partnerships with 

business.

The NCC has once again received an unqualified audit from the Auditor-General of South Africa. The reports issued 

by the Auditor-General throughout the year clearly indicate a steady improvement in compliance over time. 

I thus wish to thank the management and staff of NCC for delivering on its mandate. 

____________________________________________

Dr Rob Davies, MP

Minister of Trade and Industry
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1.2. Submission of the Annual Report to the Executive Authority

08 Bauhinia Road, Block 10, Berkley Office Park, Techno Park, Centurion, 

Tel: 012 761 3400, Email: e.mohamed@thencc.org.za

The Honourable Minister

Dr Rob Davies, MP

Department of Trade and Industry

Pretoria

Dear Honourable Minister

SUBMISSION OF NATIONAL CONSUMER COMMISSION ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15

I refer to the provisions of the Public Finance Management Act and to the Shareholder Compact entered into between 
the Executive Authority and the National Consumer Commission. 

I attach hereto, the Annual Report of the National Consumer Commission for the financial year 2014/2015 which has 
been drafted in line with the template issued by National Treasury. 

Yours Faithfully

Mr Ebrahim Mohamed

Commissioner

National Consumer Commission

31 July 2015
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1.3. Introduction by the Accounting Authority

        

I am most pleased to report that for the second year in row, the National 

Consumer Commission (NCC) has received an unqualified audit for the 

financial period under review. This is the result of improved control 

measures that have been put in place over the last two years. The 

findings raised by the Auditor General of South Africa reflects a genuine 

decrease from the previous year. The close monitoring of action plans in 

relation to the previous external and internal audit findings coupled with 

the willingness by the vast majority of management and staff to comply 

have also contributed immensely to this improvement. 

        

My performance has been closely monitored by Minister and I can 

confirm that I have met 22 out of 23 of the deliverables expected 

of me. This would not have been possible without the hard work 

and dedication of members of my staff. The Parliamentary Portfolio 

Committee on Trade and Industry, under the leadership of Ms Joan 

Fubbs, and in line with its oversight functions, has also kept the NCC 

on its toes. I am indebted to Minister, the Portfolio Committee and 

the Audit and Risk Committee for their constructive criticism and 

guidance throughout the year.  

Whilst the focus in the previous year was on governance related 

issues, delivery on the NCC’s core mandate was lacking to some 

degree. However, since the appointment by the Honourable Minister, 

Dr Rob Davies of the Deputy Commissioner, Ms Thezi Mabuza, who took responsibility, for, amongst a number 

of other issues, delivery on the core mandate, delivery has improved dramatically. I am indebted to her for her 

unwavering support, dedication and hard work. 

The performance information contained in this report reflects an improvement from the previous year. The NCC 

has fully met sixteen (16) out of eighteen (18) targets. Of the two (2) targets that have not been fully met, there 

has been significant progress on the delivery of all of these targets.  

Whilst continuing with its conciliatory approach and rebuilding trust and relationships in the course of the year, 

the NCC also adopted a combative approach, where necessary. In the process, the NCC has exposed certain very 

harmful business practices particularly related to food products.  

The NCC has also expressed its deep concern on certain business practices within the timeshare and cellular 

telephone industry. I do not expect the NCC’s concerns with these disputes to be resolved quickly given what is 

at stake. 

The functioning of the contact centre, email and telephone system improved last year. However, the power 

outages helped further expose weaknesses in an already poor IT system. I do apologise to consumers and 

other stakeholders who found it difficult to communicate with the NCC at certain times. I expect certain minor 

disruptions to continue but everything possible will be done to mitigate these.   

Insofar as the financial information of the NCC is concerned, I have fully accounted for all monies received 

and spent by the NCC. Cost containment measures introduced by Treasury continues to be implemented in its 

entirety at the NCC.  No acts of fraud or corruption relating to the year under review have been reported. 
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1.4        Vision and Mission Statements

1.4.1 Vision

In pursuance of its strategic mandate as enshrined in the Act, the vision of the NCC is: “To be the leading 

institution in consumer protection that is professional, responsive and effective.”

1.4.2 Mission

The mission of the NCC is: “To promote compliance with the Consumer Protection Act through advocacy 

and enforcement, in order to ensure fair business practice and to uphold the social and economic welfare of 

consumers”.

1.4.3 Value Statements

Values are common traits and attributes, which guide the manner in which the organisation will relate with 

its stakeholders.  They are intended to define and shape the culture of the NCC and guide how staff members 

interact both internally and with stakeholders.  

The NCC’s value statements are:

a. Professionalism and Ethical conduct - Promote and maintain a high standard of professional ethic

b. Efficiency & effectiveness - Promote efficient, effective and economic use of resources

c. Non-discrimination and Fairness - Provide service impartially, fairly, equitably and without bias

d. Responsiveness - Being responsive to consumer needs (and the public) in a timely manner

e. Accountability - Accepting responsibility for our own actions

f. Transparency – Fostering a culture wherein the bases upon which decisions are made are consistent and 

transparent

g. People focused - Maximise and cultivate human capital development and practices

h. Teamwork - Promote coherent and effective teams within the NCC 

1.5        Legislative Mandate

The NCC has considered the following sets of legislation and policy prescripts:

1.5.1 Constitutional Mandates

Through its legislative mandate and its promotion of fair business practice, the NCC plays a significant role in 

upholding and preserving the principles enshrined in the Bill of Rights.  Specifically, the NCC has a direct impact 

on the following areas within the Constitution of the country, under the Bill of Rights section:
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· Sub-section 9: Equality – Through remaining accessible to diverse groupings of consumers, the NCC plays 

its role in ensuring that parties have the right to equal protection and benefit of the law.  Additionally, the 

NCC strives through its value system to respect human diversity and ensure that no form of discrimination, 

if any, is tolerated.

· Sub-section 10: Human dignity – The NCC ensures that prohibited conduct on the part of providers of 

goods and services, as well as the relevant action thereto does not impair human dignity.

· Sub-section 14: Privacy – The NCC ensures that the privacy of persons is protected.

· Sub-section 33: Just administrative action – The NCC ensures it hears both sides to a dispute and that it 

issues reasons for its decisions.  

1.5.2 Consumer Protection Act Mandate

The NCC is established in terms of Section 85 of the Consumer Protection Act No. 68 of 2008 (“the Act”) with 

jurisdiction through the Republic of South Africa.  The NCC reports to the Department of Trade and Industry’s 

(“the dti”) Entity and Oversight Unit and to the Consumer and Corporate Regulation Division (“CCRD”) which has, 

as one of its key roles, the creation of “credible institutions for enforcement and implementation of regulatory 

instruments”. 

The NCC is charged with the responsibility to enforce and carry out the functions assigned to it in terms of the 

Act.  The Act seeks to promote a fair, accessible and sustainable marketplace for consumer products and services 

and for that purpose to establish national norms and standards relating to consumer protection.  It further seeks 

to provide for improved standards of consumer information, to prohibit certain unfair marketing and business 

practices, to promote responsible consumer behaviour and to promote a consistent legislative and enforcement 

framework relating to consumer transactions and agreements.

1.6         Overview of the National Consumer Commission’s performance

1.6.1 Service delivery environment 

The NCC has begun to stabilise. It received an unqualified audit last year and from a governance perspective, is 

operating as a public entity should. Its compliance with the regulatory framework has improved drastically. 

Internal Audit and Risk Management, is fully implemented. Processes within the Finance and Supply Chain 

directorates have been revised.  Irregular expenditure has been managed effectively. Irregular expenditure and 

invoice registers are implemented. The asset register and payments processes have been improved. Each and 

every finding by the AGSA in the previous financial year and by internal audit has been dealt with and monitored 

regularly. Each division, in order to improve service delivery has introduced standard operating procedures. The 

Audit and Risk Committee has met several times in the course of the year. 

The NCC continues to deliver on its strategy. The strategy of the NCC is simple with its core function being, to 

enforce the CPA. The investigation of consumer complaints is at the heart of the NCC’s enforcement mandate. 

The CPA makes it clear that the NCC must promote the resolution of consumer complaints but that it is not 

responsible for intervening directly therein. This means that the NCC is not expected to be involved in the 

conciliation or mediation of disputes between consumers and suppliers unless the parties consent to a settlement 

during the course of an investigation. The NCC, given its limited resources, has accepted that it will be impossible 
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for it to investigate every complaint. Moreover, the vast majority of consumers, in lodging complaints, are seeking 

quick and cost effective redress of their disputes. The CPA encourages consumers and suppliers to firstly attempt 

to resolve their disputes amongst themselves, prior to referring these complaints to alternate dispute resolution 

agents, industry ombud schemes, provincial consumer protection courts, before these complaints are referred 

to the NCC. The NCC is not an alternate dispute resolution agent, as defined in the CPA. The NCC therefore 

resolved to promote the establishment of quick and cost effective redress mechanisms, by agreeing with certain 

industries and or sectors of industry to establish respective industry ombud schemes to assist in the conciliation 

and mediation of disputes. A number of industries responded positively. As a result, the NCC recommended, and 

Minister, in the year under review, accredited the Motor Industry Code and ombud scheme as well the Consumer 

Goods and Services code and ombud scheme.  Both these statutory schemes will commence operation in the 

2015/2016 financial year. It must also be mentioned that the accreditation of industry codes is the first of its 

kind in Africa. The only other known example of a similar type of co regulation in the world, exists in the United 

Kingdom. It is highly likely that the South African model will be closely watched and studied around the globe. 

The accreditation of the aforementioned industry codes and ombud schemes are most significant, in that, it marks 

the beginning of a public private partnership insofar as the joint implementation of the Consumer Protection 

Act is concerned. The industries are funding these alternate dispute resolution schemes without any financial 

assistance from government. The services offered to consumers are free of any charges. In establishing these 

schemes, the respective industries have invested millions of rand in the protection of consumer rights. These 

schemes have led to a number of jobs being created. Whilst teething problems are expected, this approach serves 

to benefit consumers immensely. Firstly, consumers will be able to seek accessible, free and speedy conciliation 

and mediation services on their consumer related disputes when resolution through the internal structures of 

the supplier has failed. Secondly, these disputes will ordinarily be dealt with by persons who should be familiar 

with the nature of the transaction as it falls within the industry or sector. The role of the NCC in this regard is to 

monitor the work of these ADR agents. This approach is also significant to the NCC, in that, from a regulators 

perspective, the NCC can now monitor consumer disputes per industry and sector. In monitoring the complaints 

dealt with by these alternate dispute resolution schemes, the NCC will be able to identify endemic harmful 

business practices as well as emerging harmful trends. Interventions by the NCC can therefore be meaningful. 

This is vital given the limited resources which must be put to effective use.

For the second year in a row, the NCC has drastically reduced its legal costs. Admittedly, much of this was due to a 

cautious and conservative approach taken by the NCC. However, it is envisaged that as the NCC stabilises further, 

it will begin developing the common law in so far as consumer protection law is concerned. This will necessitate 

matters being dealt with in the National Consumer Tribunal and the law courts of the Republic.   

Overall, sixteen (16) of the eighteen (18) targets were fully met. The School club was not fully established and the 

research reports- whilst concluded were not reviewed in time to be sent to Minister by the end of the financial 

year. 

1.6.2        Organisational environment 

As at the end of March 2015, the NCC had an approved structure, consisting of 182 officials. However, it only has 

sufficient funding for 83 officials. It has been accepted that as a result of constraints on the fiscus, the NCC will 

not be seeking additional funding to enable it to fill all 182 posts. In this regard, the NCC has commenced with a 

restructuring process in the current financial year. The vast majority of unfunded posts will be abandoned. The 

restructuring will not result in any jobs being lost. 

The Chief Financial Officer (CFO), who was also the head of Corporate Services was suspended with pay pending 

a disciplinary hearing. The CFO subsequently resigned shortly after the commencement date of the disciplinary 
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hearing. A manager from within the Finance directorate of the NCC was appointed to act as CFO until the position 

was filled. In addition, the head: Complaints Resolution, also resigned immediately prior to the commencement 

of a disciplinary hearing. 

A recognition agreement was signed with NEHAWU in the course of the year. NEHAWU is the majority trade 

union at the NCC. The agreement was negotiated in good spirits and in the course of several fruitful meetings. In 

order to avoid protracted negotiations on cost of living adjustments on an annual basis, it was agreed by both the 

NEHAWU and the NCC that it would be in the interest of all parties to accept the cost of living adjustments settled 

upon at the Public Service Co-ordinating Bargaining Council (PSCBC). It was also accepted that the NEHAWU is 

the majority union at the PSCBC and as such, acceptance of the cost of living adjustments settled upon by 

NEHAWU –NCC cannot be at odds with what is agreed upon for public servants within the national sphere of 

government. NEHAWU also understood that the budgetary constraints of the NCC are no different from that of 

other national public entities that are wholly funded by national government. Moreover, the salary scales of the 

NCC officials are no different from the salary scales and levels as determined by the Department of Public Service 

and Administration.

The Executive Authority is in the process of assisting its agencies, the NCC, included, in establishing bargaining 

chambers. This will certainly assist in creating and sustaining necessary bargaining forums. 

In the meantime, regular meetings are being held between the NCC and NEHAWU. Thus far the relationship 

between the parties is sound.  

The NCC, in drafting its strategic and annual performance plans applicable from 2015/6 onwards, planned to do 

a little more without seeking any increase in its budget. With the accreditation of the Motor Industry and the 

Consumer Goods and Services Codes, the NCC will be better placed to focus on the long outstanding Opt Out 

register in the forthcoming financial year. It also has been decided to increase the number of inspections and 

publications for the benefit of consumers and suppliers.    
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The promotion of consumer protection within the African continent is also gathering momentum. The NCC is a 

founding member of the Africa Dialogue. The Dialogue is made up of consumer protection bodies from all parts 

of the African continent. Members are made up of both statutory and non-governmental entities. In the course 

of the year, the NCC hosted a two day workshop with the consumer protection delegation from Mozambique. 

The meeting with the delegation from Mozambique was a very fruitful one. Mozambique is very keen on 

implementing consumer protection legislation similar to that of the Consumer Protection Act. The delegation 

acknowledged that as South Africa has tightened up its consumer protection laws, it is expected that consumer 

rights abuses would shift out of South Africa, into other parts of Africa. Mozambique indicated that it was not 

willing to be the dumping ground for poor quality goods. 

Zimbabwe, in the course of the year under review, also sought the assistance of the NCC. Zimbabwe is most keen 

in establishing and implementing consumer protection legislation. To this end, it has already drafted legislation, 

based on South Africa’s Consumer Protection Act.

At the fifth African Consumer Protection Dialogue Conference, held from 10th-12th September 2013 in  

Livingstone, Zambia adopted a Statement of Intent for cross border collaboration in consumer protection 

enforcement for its delegates.

In the Statement of Intent, the conference delegates recognized the need for effective and enhanced cross 

border collaboration between and among the participating consumer protection and competition agencies, as 

well as criminal authorities for enforcement cooperation on consumer protection matters, reciprocal exchange 

of information, and expertise among agencies.

The conference delegates observed that all participating countries were affected by numerous consumer 

violations across borders, and the need to combat them.  They also recognized that cooperation between 

consumer agencies and criminal enforcement agencies on matters of mutual concern, such as fraud, would also 

help protect consumers against such practices.
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Participating agencies resolved to work together to collaborate on various consumer protection areas. The NCC, 

together with other agencies of the dti, several countries of the African continent and the Federal Trade NCC 

of the United States of America, have commenced preparations for the next conference at which cross border 

consumer related matters will be finalised.  

1.6.3       Key policy developments and legislative changes 

Minister has accredited two industry codes in terms of the provisions of section 82 of the CPA. These are the 

Codes for the motor industry and for the consumer goods and services industries. 

According to the Consumer Goods and Services Ombud (CGSO) - which will also be applicable to the Motor 

Industry Code:

“The Code and the CGSO were established to guide Industry as to what is considered the minimum standards 

of conduct expected when engaging with consumers and to assist in resolving disputes that arise between 

Consumers and Industry in terms of the CPA. 

The Code regulates interaction between participants conducting business within the industry and the consumer, 

and provides for an alternative dispute resolution mechanism as described in section 82 (6) of the CPA should 

there be a dispute between a Participant and Consumers. 

The Purpose of the Code is to: 

· Raise the standards of good conduct in the Industry without endangering the vitality and growth of business; 

· Generate growth in the Industry by increasing the level of certainty for all Participants; 

· Offer guidance to participants in the industry as to the implementation of and the compliance with the CPA 

and what constitutes fair business practices to be followed when operating within the Industry; 

· Educate Consumers as to their rights and redress available to them should a Participant breach the CPA or 

the Code; and 

· Provide for a scheme of alternative dispute resolution as described in section 82 (6) of the CPA. 

The Participants within the Industry are required to pursue the objectives as set out in section 3 of the CPA, 

especially to: 

· Reduce and ameliorate any disadvantages experienced by consumers in accessing the supply of any Goods 

and Services; 

· Promote fair business practices; 

· Protect Consumers from: 

- Unconscionable, unfair, unreasonable, unjust or otherwise improper trade practices; and 

- Deceptive, misleading, unfair or fraudulent conduct. 

· Provide for a consistent, accessible and efficient system of consensual resolution of disputes arising from 

consumer transactions.” 
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A discussion on the rationale and impact of the codes is contained herein, under paragraph 1.6.1. 

From an international consumer protection perspective, the issue of electronic spamming has been highlighted.  

Electronic spamming is described as the 

“use of electronic messaging systems to send unsolicited messages (spam), especially advertising…While the most 

widely recognized form of spam is email spam, the term is applied to similar abuses in other media: instant messaging 

spam, Usenet newsgroup spam, Web search engine spam, spam in blogs, wiki spam, online classified ads spam, 

mobile phone messaging spam, Internet forum spam, junk fax transmissions, social spam, television advertising and 

file sharing spam. ..Spamming appears to be econmoically viable because advertisers have no operating costs beyond 

the management of their mailing lists, and it is difficult to hold senders accountable for their mass mailings. Because 

the barrier to entry is so low, spammers are numerous, and the volume of unsolicited mail has become very high. In 

the year 2011, the estimated figure for spam messages is around seven trillion. The costs, such as lost productivity 

and fraud, are borne by the public and by Internet service providers, which have been forced to add extra capacity to 

cope with the deluge.” 

The NCC intends creating an opt out register in the next financial year in line with the provisions of section 11 of the 

CPA. It is anticipated that once the register is operational, this would be of immense benefit to consumers, in that 

consumers will be able to opt out of receiving any mail or messages relating to direct marketing and offending direct 

marketers will be held to account. 

The NCC is partcularly concerned about unsolicited direct marketing messages (spam) which is used to deceive and 

scam consumers. This will be the subject of the Africa Dialogue conference to be held in Egypt in the next financial 

year. A cross border cooperation network amongst regulators on the African Continent will be establsihed. 
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PART 2: PERFORMANCE INFORMATION 

2.1.        PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE

2.1.1        Strategic objectives of the National Consumer Commission

The strategic objectives articulated below were arrived at through a careful assessment of the environment 

in which the NCC operates. The planning workshops that resulted in the production of this strategic plan 

gathered up-to-date information about the organisation’s internal strengths and weaknesses, and its external 

opportunities and threats (challenges).  This analysis also considered political, economic, social, environmental 

and technological aspects applicable to the NCC. Through this exercise, the workshops were able to refine and 

reshape the list of critical questions facing the NCC, and thus defining the critical strategic tasks facing the NCC 

over the next five years.

The following are the strategic objectives that will be pursued by the NCC over the next five years. 

1. To promote compliance with the Consumer Protection Act

2. To be a well governed and capacitated organisation 

Each objective is supported by specific key outputs, which are in turn supported by key performance indicators 

and targets and detailed in the annual performance plan and business plan of the NCC.

2.1.2.        Description of Programmes 

2.1.2.1       To promote compliance with the Consumer Protection Act

The NCC as the key national regulator for consumer protection, is required to promote compliance with the CPA 

by suppliers and consumers. In promoting compliance the NCC:  

- facilitates the resolution of complaints through a system that is consistent, accessible and efficient for   

 consensual resolution of disputes, arising from consumer transactions;

- conducts inspections and investigations;

- facilitates and conducts product recalls in order to promote consumer safety;

- recommends industry codes for accreditation to Minister;

- conducts research;

- engages in consumer awareness campaigns; and 

- develops codes of good practice. 

.  

2.1.2.2        Programme 2: To be a well governed and capacitated organisation

       Purpose of the Programme

The Corporate Services division is critical to the operation of the NCC, in that, it is responsible for Finance, Supply 

Chain, Human Resources, Information Technology and Records Management. In addition, as the key national 

consumer protection regulator, the need to improve and maintain stakeholder relations both in the country and 

outside, is vital.  
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2.1.2.3        Key achievements of Programmes

2.1.2.3.1    To promote compliance with the Consumer Protection Act

            a)       Complaints 

The complaints received by the NCC have been analysed in the course of the year. The database of complaints 

relate to those received by the NCC alone. This will be developed over time to include the complaints received by 

the accredited ombuds and by the provincial consumer protection authorities. The complaints database is most 

significant for the NCC, in that, it will be consulted by the NCC in order to determine trends. Trends could relate 

to particular industries, sectors, suppliers, localities, products or services etc. The data could also indicate other 

areas of concern. Once trends are established, the NCC will then be able to determine whether interventions 

are necessary and the nature of interventions. This invariably will assist in the optimum usage of resources at 

the NCC’s disposal.  

       The analysis mentioned herein under is done by the NCC’s Research Division.  

i) Analysis

aa)   Number of complaints

In the course of the year under review, 5242 consumer files were assessed. The relevant data was captured and 

analysed. Information was captured per quarter. 

Figure 1: Total number of complaints for the FY per quarter
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ab) Complainants by Gender

Figure 2 below shows the number of complaints categorised according to gender. Out of a total of 5242 of 

complaints, 2007 (38%) were received from females and 3235 (62%) from males. Statistics South Africa (STATTSA) 

2014 mid-year data, estimates that out of a population of 54 million, 51.3% are female and 48.7% are male. In 

lodging complaints, the percentage of males exceeded the norm compared to females.  
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Figure 2: Number of Complaints by gender
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Figure 3: Total by gender for the year
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ac) Complainants per Age Groups

Age is of paramount importance to the NCC as it indicates the level of awareness of the broader vulnerable 

groups (the youth and the elderly). During the financial year, out of 5242 complainants who filed with the NCC, 

1826 (35%) were from complainants in age group 18-35 years, 1519 (29%) were from the 36-45 years group, 

1499 (29%) were from the age group 46-60 years and 398 (8%) were from the age group >60 years. The youth, 

18-35 year age group lodged the highest number of complaints with the NCC during the financial year under 

review. Whereas the age group (>60) years or the elderly lodged the lowest number of complaints

Figure 4: Complaints by age group for the FY
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ad) Complainants per Race

Analysis was done by race in order to evaluate consumer protection awareness levels per race as per figure 

5 below. During the financial year under review, whites lodged the highest number of complaints of 2406 

(45.9%). Africans lodged 2107 complaints (40.2%). The lowest number of complaints were lodged by Indians and 

Coloureds at 475 (9.1%) and 254 (4.8%) respectively. 
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Figure 5: Complaints by race for the FY
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Figure 6: Complainants by race compared to STATSSA 2014 mid-year estimates
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The 2014 mid-year STATSSA population estimated Black population at 79%, Whites at 9.1%, Coloureds at 8.9% 

and Indians at 3% as shown in figure 6 above. Among all racial groups in the country the percentage of the Black 

population group who lodged complaints with the NCC is far below the STATSSA (40.2% compared to 79%) Black 
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population data. The percentage of White population that lodged complaints with the NCC during the year far 

exceeds the mid-year White population data, (45.9%) compared to 9.1%). The percentage of Indians who lodged 

complaints with the NCC also exceeds the percentage of Indians as estimated by STATSSA mid-year data, (9.1% 

compared 3%). The percentage of Coloureds who lodged complaints with NCC is lower than the STATSSA 2014 

mid-year population estimate, (4.8% compared to 8.9%).

ae) Complaints by Categories

Analysis on the complaints was also done by categories in order to determine sectors that generate the most 

amount of complaints as shown in figure 7 below. 

Figure 7: Complaints by categories for the FY
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af) Complaints by Province

Analysis on complaints were done per province as shown in figure 8 below. Gauteng registered the highest 

number of complaints, 2935 (56%), followed by the Western Cape at 843 (16%). The third highest number 

of complaints came from KwaZulu Natal at 616 (12%). This data correlates with the level of development in 

provinces. Affluent provinces such as Gauteng and the Western Cape have the highest number of complaints. 

From the figure below, very few complaints were received from the other provinces. The Eastern Cape had 204 

(4%); Free State, 220 (4%); Limpopo, 109 (2%); Mpumalanga had 177 (3%); Northern Cape, 47 (1%) and North 

West had 91, (2%).
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Figure 8: Complaints by Province
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ag)  Complaints by type 

Out of 5242 complaints filed with the NCC, 586 (15%) were on contract cancellation; 422 (11%) were on 

incorrect billing, 763 (19%) were on misrepresentation; 798 (20%) were on defective goods; 260 (6%) were 

about unconscionable conduct; 1065 (27%) were about poor service delivery; and 88 (2%) were on unauthorised 

deductions. From the above analysis it can be concluded that the highest number of complaints are about poor 

service delivery (27%) followed by defective goods (20%). Misrepresentation is still a problem as well as contract 

cancellation at 19% and 15% respectively.
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Figure 9: Types of Complaints for the FY
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ah) Top three categories of complaints 

The three top categories of the complaints during the financial year is shown in figure 10 below. This analysis 

will help the NCC to develop its intervention strategies. From the figure, it shows that out of a total of 5242 

complaints filed with the NCC, 1177 (23%) were about Motor Vehicles. Motor vehicles category shares the same 

number with Retail also at 1177 (23%). The third highest category relates to Cellular telephones at 946 (19%). 
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Figure 10: 3 top categories for the FY
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ai) Types of Cellular telephone Complaints

An analysis of the top three categories is shown in figure 11 below. With regard to cellular telephones, the 

highest number of complaints were on contract cancellation, at 25%. This is followed by poor service delivery at 

24%. In descending order, the types of complaints about cellular telephones are: 21% for defective goods; 17%  

for misrepresentation, 8% for unconscionable conduct, 3% for incorrect billing and 2% for unauthorised 

deduction. 
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Figure 11: Cell phone complaints for the FY
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aj) Types of Motor Vehicle Complaints 

With regard to motor vehicle related complaints, the highest number of complaints related to defective goods,

at 37% this was followed by poor service delivery at 24%, misrepresentation at 24%, contract cancellation at

11%, unconscionable conduct at 4%. This information is shown in figure 12 below.
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Figure 12: Types of Motor Vehicle complaints for the FY
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ak) TYPES OF COMPLAINTS LODGED ABOUT RETAIL

Finally, analysis was done on the types of complaints with regard to Retail as shown in figure 13 below. In the 

Retail sphere the highest type of complaints were about Poor service delivery at 38%, followed by Defective 

goods at 25%, followed by Misrepresentation at 20%, followed by Contract cancellation at 8%, followed by 

Unconscionable conduct at 6%, followed by Incorrect billing at 2% and finally by Unauthorised deduction at 1%.
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b) Inspections and investigations

During the year under review the NCC continued with improving its investigations processes. A screening committee 

assisted the investigation team in identifying investigations as well as determining the scope of the investigations. A 

process for approval of investigations was implemented to ensure that all investigations are approved and certified 

by the Commissioner of the NCC.  

i) Investigations and Inspections initiated by the NCC: 

Section 71 of the CPA, states that the NCC may initiate complaints. It can do so if directed by the Minister 

of Trade and Industry, on its own motion, on the request of a provincial consumer protection authority, a 

regulatory authority or accredited consumer protection group.

In terms of the NCC’s strategy, sector investigations are identified from complaint trends and matters brought 

to the attention of the NCC that are deemed to impact significantly on consumers. 

ii) Inspections & Product recalls 

It is an underlying principle of the CPA that consumers must be protected from hazards to their safety and 

well-being. Consumers do have the right to return unsafe or defective goods. Goods are deemed hazardous 

or unsafe when those goods presents a significant risk of personal injury to any person, or damage to 

property, when the goods are utilised. If the goods are unsafe, The NCC can recall those goods for repair, 

replacement or refund.
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The NCC proactively conducted extensive inspections in relation to non- pressure paraffin stoves and heaters. The 

said inspections spanned the period 04 to 23 September 2014. The purpose of these inspections was to determine 

the level of compliance (or non- compliance) by retailers with the CPA and related legislation, as well as compulsory 

specifications prescribed by the National Regulator for Compulsory Specifications (NRCS). The inspections were 

largely prompted by the phenomenon of the mass burning of informal dwellings allegedly sparked by non-pressure 

paraffin stoves and heaters. This always results in untold misery for the victims e.g. loss of property, loss of life and 

disruption of their lives as individuals and families. In total, 127 retailers were visited in several municipalities in 

Gauteng, Mpumalanga, North West and Limpopo.  In general, the following observations were made:

- Consumers in vulnerable communities make use of the paraffin stoves all year-round for cooking purposes, 

in order to curtail their electricity costs;

- Primarily, the retailers selling these items were of foreign descent; 

- The products did not comply with the NRCS specifications including: Markings - Approval Number, Safety 

Instructions, Manufacturer’s Name, Country of Origin, Model Number and Batch Number;

- Retailers displayed these products for sale bearing no prices;

- The retailers did not provide sales records to consumers; and

- Most retailers could not produce accounting documents (invoices) for the paraffin stoves sold to consumers.

The non-complying retailers signed Consent Agreements and the NCC has agreed with the NRCS that both entities 

would periodically monitor this market, by conducting follow-up inspections. 

A focus for the 2014/15 financial year was to ensure consumer protection through inspections in order to promote 

safety and quality of foodstuffs. The motivation for this was that the labelling of food products affected each and 

every consumer. The need for the inspections were also identified during the meat labelling investigation that was 

carried out in the previous year when the NCC observed poor compliance with labelling regulations in general.

The NCC coordinated its efforts with the National Department of Health and various Municipalities, in particular, with 

Municipal Health Services. This coordination enabled the NCC to effectively conduct inspections. The Department 

of Health assisted the NCC with effective communication with the district municipalities. The effectiveness of the 

inspection in terms of the CPA, the National Health Act as well as the Foods Stuffs, Cosmetics and Disinfectants Act 

and its regulations necessitated the need for coordinated actions/efforts of the inspectors. 

With regard to one inspection that targeted labelling of goods, expired goods and returns and refund policies, the 

project entailed inspections carried out on sixty retail outlets situated in nine municipalities which spanned two 

provinces. In the course of this inspection it was established that: 

o Despite the fact that the “sell by” and “use by” dates of certain food products had expired, these were still 

found on shop shelves. 

o Certain suppliers had altered and falsified labels

o Certain food products had no labelling attached which should ordinarily list the ingredients and the details 

of the producer. 

As a result of the inspections carried out in the North West, Gauteng, Limpopo, Mpumalanga and Western Cape 

Provinces, the NCC was able to ensure that products which were not in compliance with the safety and quality 

standards were removed from shop shelves. 

The non-complying retailers signed Consent Agreements. The NCC would periodically monitor this market, by 

conducting follow-up inspections. 
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No trade description that indicates the name of producer, ingredients, country of origin and 
mode of production

Trade description: Sell by date defaced/removed with the intention to mislead consumers
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The NCC has actively collaborated with various suppliers in pursuing a number of product recalls. Product recalls are 

mainly done to withdraw products that are deemed unsafe or defective.  In the course of the year, the NCC received 

amongst others crucial recall notifications, the product recall notification for Simply Delicious Tastic products from 

Tiger Consumer Brands. The nature of the information received indicated that the product contained traces of Sudan 

1 and Methyl Yellow as possible carcinogens. This prompted the NCC to urgently engage with the Department of 

Health in order to acquire information in dealing with the inspections and tracing the source of the dyes. This assisted 

in putting together a strategy for purposes of assessing the extent of the prohibited food dyes within the market 

place and for the recall of the products. 

Another important notification related to the recall by Parmalat of the Pure Joy 200ml Apple juice. The juice was 

contaminated with a cleaning chemical. The NCC ensured clear communications on the recall information to consumers 

in South Africa as well as in the SADC region. As part of its monitoring mandate in this regard, engagements were held 

with Parmalat on the progress of the recall as well as the destruction of the batches of the affected product. 

Amongst others, the following products were recalled: 

a). Remington model 700 and model seven rifles with x- Mark Pro (XMP) triggers by Remington Arms Company 

LLC.

b). Pet food withdrawal by Foodcorp (Bobtail, Dogmor, Bonzo and dealer own brands).

c). Vacuum line manufactured for Audi 3.0L TDI by Audi South Africa.

d). Wing door lock – Gear Teeth manufactured for the VW Caddy and T5 by Volkswagen of South Africa.

e). Cognis Cardiac Resynchronization Therapy Defibrillators – Ds Teligen ICDS by Boston Scientific.

f). Michelin 50/80 XDR tyres manufactured for industrial vehicles by Michelin Tyre Company.

ii) Investigations 

The NCC conducted 52 investigations against various suppliers and sectors.

The NCC concluded its investigations against various timeshare entities. The investigations arose out of 

hundreds of complaints received from consumers. The practices that the NCC focused on were:

· Marketing of timeshare products 

· Overbooking/oversubscription 

· Unfair contract terms- including contracts in perpetuity versus fixed term agreements.

 
Application has been made by the NCC to have certain practices within the timeshare industry declared 

prohibited conduct. 

The industry wide poultry investigation that was as a result of a directive issued by the Minister of Trade and 

Industry was also finalised. The investigation revealed the need for more coordination in the enforcement of 

relevant regulations.
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c) Industry Codes

The relevance and impact of the accreditation of the Motor Industry and Consumer Goods and Services Codes and 

ombud schemes have been mentioned earlier in this report. In order to avoid any confusion as to the process and 

fora that should be followed and approached when disputes arise with suppliers, the NCC will be embarking upon a 

campaign to clarify this. 

In this regard, the CPA, establishes a hierarchy that should be followed. In summary, consumers and suppliers are 

encouraged to firstly attempt resolution amongst themselves. In the event the dispute is unresolved at “point of 

sale”, then consumers should approach the accredited ombuds within the relevant sector to enable conciliation 

and or mediation between the parties. Alternatively, consumers can approach the relevant provincial consumer 

protection authorities, some of which have consumer courts. It is only after the consumer has exhausted these fora, 

that the consumers should approach the NCC. 

d) Consumer Awareness

The Advocacy, Education and Awareness Division  has managed to deliver on its mandate through maximizing on 

existing partnerships with government departments, municipalities, NGO’s and other regulators.  In this regard the 

NCC has worked more closely with the dti, and its various agencies. 

Towards the latter part of last year and immediately prior to the December vacation, the NCC and the NCR embarked 

on an awareness campaign aimed at consumers relating to over indebtedness. This involved a major media campaign 
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including television and radio interviews as well as advertising in the various media. 

In the course of the year, a number of workshops were held with both consumers and business. However, there has 

been a tremendous demand for the NCC to exhibit its services and thereby promote consumer awareness at various 

events. Altogether, the NCC exhibited on no less than seventeen occasions. 

World Consumer Rights Day is celebrated internationally in recognition of and with the intent of raising awareness on 

consumer rights. On 15 March 2015, the NCC celebrated World Consumer Rights Day with the residents of Ekhuruleni, 

at the local town hall. The guest speaker at the event was the Honourable Deputy Minister of Trade and Industry, Mr 

Mzwandile Masina, MP. This also involved a media campaign to highlight consumer rights. 

e) Codes of Good Practice

Sections 23 to 28 of the CPA, has been the subject of much discussion. These relate to: 

- Disclosure of price of goods or services

- Product labelling and trade descriptions

- Disclosure of reconditioned or gray market goods

- Sales records

- Disclosure by intermediaries

- Identification of deliverers, installers and others

The NCC has seen a significant number of complaints in relation to the said provisions of the CPA. In dealing 

with these complaints, the NCC has been inundated for clarifications on the interpretation of several provisions 

that fall within sections 23- 28 of the CPA. Various differing interpretations have been bandied. In order to avoid 

confusion, the NCC has decided to produce a Code of Practice that clarifies the position of the NCC with regard to 
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these sections. Whilst the Code of Practice is not cast in stone, the Code is expected to prevail until jurisprudence 

in relation to these provisions are established by the National Consumer Tribunal and by our law courts.  

2.1.2.3.2         To be a well governed and capacitated organisation

a)     Stakeholder Relations

There has been a demand for the NCC to participate in various conferences both nationally and internationally. 

The NCC has rekindled its relationship with the Africa Dialogue, an association of consumer protectors from the 

African continent, an organization that the then Office of Consumer Protection (now NCC) located in the dti 

helped found. Apart from addressing conferences and seminars in Zambia and Zimbabwe, the NCC participated 

in the Lap 10 and OECD conferences. At all conferences, the consumer protection policy, legislation and NCC’s 

strategy has been shared, all of which has been well received. The NCC undertook to assist its fellow regulators 

in Africa by sharing experiences and policies and working together. This means that in due course, South African 

businesses that conduct business in Africa will be required to adhere to consumer protection laws in those 

countries that are similar to the CPA. 

The Minister of Trade and Industry had rightly complained last year that the NCC was not visible enough. This 

criticism was taken seriously. In response, the NCC undertook and did respond to all its media queries within 48 

hours. It has also regularly participated in numerous television broadcasts, radio interviews, including national 

and local radio stations. It has issued various press releases and published articles in order to increase awareness 

amongst both consumers and suppliers. 

The NCC has continued working closely with its stakeholders. This includes certain regulators, like the National 

Credit Regulator, the National Regulator for Compulsory Specifications, Independent Communications Authority 

of South Africa (ICASA), the Estate Agency Affairs Board and very importantly, Provincial Consumer Authorities. 

Prior to conducting an investigation in terms of the CPA, against suppliers that fall within the direct jurisdiction 

of an industry or sector regulator, the NCC is obliged to consult with the relevant regulator. This consultation 

is important in order to avoid duplication of investigations and to settle on matters relating to overlapping 

jurisdictions. 

                   

b)    Corporate Services 

Support services to the NCC is rendered by the Corporate Services Division. These services relate to information 

technology (IT), finance, supply chain, human resources and records management. The division was previously 

headed by the chief financial officer (CFO) who resigned prior to his disciplinary hearing commencing. The NCC 

has since filled the head of corporate services post. The post of CFO is in the process of being filled, whereas an 

acting CFO has been appointed in the interim. 

 The IT system at the NCC has been a genuine challenge over the years. Firstly, the system itself was inadequate 

and therefore unable to cope with the daily demands of the NCC. Piecemeal additions were made to the system 

over time to cope with the increasing demand. Not all the piecemeal solutions worked well. In essence the 

system was not aligned with the business processes of the NCC. A review of the ICT system was performed by the 

Head of Corporate Services. A strategy was then developed and approved. The following illustrates a summary 

of requirements and the related medium term deliverables:

· To ensure effective: 

- Contact centre services
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- Website services

- Internet services

- E-mail services

- Telephony services

- Payroll and Accounting services

-  Information management

- Risk management

· Optimize ICT Infrastructure 

· Ensure Applications rationalization

· Optimize ICT Organization

· Ensure effective ICT Governance  

The strategy was approved and as at the end of the financial year, was in the process of being implemented. 

The internal control environment related to corporate services has been substantially improved. Amongst other 

things, the following have been effected in the NCC in the year under review; 

· Cash and banking management policy and standard operating procedure;

· Revenue Management Policy and standard operating procedure;

· Standard operating procedure manual on supply chain management; and

· Policy on debt write off

THE NCC EXECUTIVE COMMITEE
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2.2  PERFORMANCE AGAINST THE ANNUAL PERFORMANCE PLAN 

2.2.1 Strategic objectives, outputs, performance indicators planned targets and actual 
achievements

Strategic Objective: 1. To promote compliance with the Consumer Protection Act

Programme: Promoting Compliance 

Output Measure/Indicator Baseline Target Actual Achievement Reason for 
Variance

Complaints 
registered

Percentage (%)  of 
complaints received 
registered  

95% of com-
plaints received 
registered on 
an average of 
three days  

95% of complaints 
received registered 
on an average of 
three days  

100% of received 
complaints regis-
tered on an average 
of (2) working days 
of receipt.

 Analysis of 
Complaints 

Percentage  (%) of 
registered complaints 
analyzed in a pre-
defined time period

98% of 
registered 
complaints 
analysed on an 
average of six 
days

95% of registered 
complaints anal-
ysed on an average 
of eight days

100% of registered 
complaints analysed 
on an average of 
two (2) days 

Complaints 
resolved time-
ously

Percentage  (%) of 
complaints resolved 
in a pre-defined time 
period

86% of com-
plaints resolved 
on an average 
of 297 days

70% of complaints 
resolved on an av-
erage of 80 days

7204 complaints 
received. referred/ 
resolved 5751 

Altogether, 80% of 
complaints resolved 
on an average 
fourteen (14) days. 

Investigations 
and inspections 
completed and 
reports issued

Number of 
investigations and  
Inspections finalised  
and Approved by the 
Commissioner

41 
investigations 
and inspections 
finalised and 
reports drafted 
and approved 
by the 
Commissioner

30  Investigations 
and  Inspections 

finalised  and 
reports drafted and  

approved by the 
Commissioner

52 investigations 
and  Inspections 
finalised  and 
approved by the 
Commissioner 

Industry codes 
recommended 
for accredita-
tion in a time-
ous manner

Turnaround time for 
the recommenda-
tion of codes to the 
Minister from date of 
receipt of the codes

1 Recommenda-
tion of codes to 
Minister within 6 
months  from date 
of receipt of com-
pliant codes

Compliant Con-
sumer Goods and 
Services Code 
recommended to 
Minister within six 
(6) months.  

Code accredited by 
Minister

Research 
conducted and 
reports issued

Number of research 
reports completed 
and issued to the 
executive committee 

Not part of 
2013/14 target 

2 research reports 
submitted to Minis-
ter on:

1) Funeral Ser-
vices; and 

2) Tow Truck Ser-
vices

Two (2) research 
reports on: Funeral 
Services; and Tow 
Truck Services pro-
duced but not sub-
mitted to Minister

Insufficient 
time was 
set aside for 
editing of the 
reports 
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Strategic Objective: 1. To promote compliance with the Consumer Protection Act

Programme: Promoting Compliance 

Output Measure/Indicator Baseline Target Actual Achievement Reason for 
Variance

Consumer 
awareness 
initiatives con-
ducted

Number of consumer 
awareness initiatives 
conducted

12 12 Workshops Thirteen (13) work-
shops held in the 
year 

5 08 Exhibitions Seventeen (17) exhi-
bitions held during 
the year.

1 School 
Consumer Club

1 School Consumer 
Club

School club not yet 
established- await-
ing decision of 
school governing 
body

Due to de-
mand from 
stakeholders 
emphasis was 
placed on 
exhibitions.

Codes of good 
practice devel-
oped

Number of codes of 
good practice devel-
oped

NIL One code of good 
practice developed

The code relating 
to interpretation of 
rights as contained 
in section 23 to 28 
has been developed 
and approved for 
publication.  

Strategic Objective: 2. To be a well governed and capacitated organization

Name of Programme /Sub-programme: corporate services and stakeholder management 

Output Measure/Indicator Baseline Target Actual Achievement Reason for 
Variance

Implementation 
of approved 
organisation 
structure

Percentage (%) of 
positions filled

24% 20% of vacant 
positions 
filled

76 (92%) of the 83 
funded posts were filled 
as at 31 March 2015. 

8 percent of posts are 
vacant.

Effective ICT 
Services

Develop and/ or 
Implement ICT 
strategy

NIL ICT strategy 
Developed

The ICT Strategy de-
veloped and approved, 
and in process of being 
implemented.

Stakeholder 
relations pro-
moted

Number of meetings 
with key stakehold-
ers

5 meetings 
with Regula-
tors;

4 Meetings 
held with 
critical stake-
holders

Nine (9) meetings ar-
ranged and held with 
stakeholders. Attended 
two (2) other meetings 
on invitation by stake-
holders. 

4  meet-
ings with 
provincial 
consumer 
protection 
authorities

Quarterly 
meetings with 
provincial 
consumer 
protection 
authorities

4 meetings held with 
provincial consumer 
protection authorities. 
One per quarter. 
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Strategic Objective: 2. To be a well governed and capacitated organization

Name of Programme /Sub-programme: corporate services and stakeholder management 

Output Measure/Indicator Baseline Target Actual Achievement Reason for 
Variance

Participation in key 
international and 
national confer-
ences. 

6 confer-
ences 

Participate 
in 3 
international 
Conferences:  
1)  Africa   
Dialogue;

2) Spam 
conference- 
Lap 10;

3)OECD 
Conference

NCC participated in the: 

i)  Africa Dialogue Con-
ference in Malawi 

ii) The LAP 10, spam 
conference, was at-
tended in Japan; and 

iii) OECD conference in 
Paris was attended.

Reports were compiled 
following each confer-
ence. 

NCC also participated 
in:  

i) preparation for 
next Africa Dialogue 
conference to be held in 
Egypt;

ii) Seminar in Zimbabwe 
on Zimbabwean draft 
consumer protection 
legislation

Participate 
in 3 National 
Conferences- 
1) World 
Consumer 
Rights day;

2)  World 
Retail 
Conference

3) NRCS 
Conference

NCC Participated in the 
following: 

i) Consumer Rights Day 
function (held by NCC 
in Ekurhuleni on Sunday 
15 March 2015);

ii) World Retail Confer-
ence;

iii) Complaints Resolu-
tion  
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Strategic Objective: 2. To be a well governed and capacitated organization

Name of Programme /Sub-programme: corporate services and stakeholder management 

Output Measure/Indicator Baseline Target Actual Achievement Reason for 
Variance

conference in Cape 
Town and Compliance 
conference hosted by 
Dept of Health ad-
dressed in Rustenburg  

(the NRCS conference 
was postponed to the 
next financial year) 

Number of internal 
Newsletters devel-
oped and distributed

4 Internal 
Newsletters 
developed 
and distrib-
uted

4 Internal 
Newsletters 
developed 
and distrib-
uted

4 Internal Newsletters 
developed and distrib-
uted

Turnaround time 
for attending to all 
media enquiries.

15 Media 
responses 
were issued 

Attend to all 
media enqui-
ries within 48 
hours from 
the time these 
are received. 

All media enquiries 
attended to within 48 
hours from the time 
these were received.

2.3 Strategy to overcome areas of under performance

The NCC met sixteen out of eighteen targets. This reflects an improvement on the previous year, where sixteen out of 

twenty targets were met then. The under performance that has been reported under paragraph 2.2 under the heading 

PERFORMANCE AGAINST THE ANNUAL PERFORMANCE PLAN  are not as a result of key challenges faced by the NCC 

except for the possible lack of appropriate management and or relevant skills within the Research Division.  

Key challenge Proposed action

School Consumer Club not established The non-establishment of the school club was a result of the additional requests 
for exhibitions by critical stakeholders. Better planning and monitoring of 
performance will be put in place including the introduction of project planning 
principles.

2 research reports submitted to 
Minister

To carefully reassess management capacity and skills within the Research Division 
and to put intervention measures in place if necessary.  
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2.4 Changes to planned targets 

The planned targets as contained in the Annual Performance Plan which was tabled in Parliament were amended 

and approved by Minister in the course of the year under review. All changes were canvassed at length prior to 

amendment and agreed upon with the Executive Authority.  

The in- year changes and the reasons for the changes are reported as follows:

CHANGES TO PLANNED TARGETS REASONS FOR CHANGES TO PERFORMANCE 
INDICATORS

Initial target Amended target

Attend to all media enquiries Attend to all media enquiries 
within 48 hours from the time 
these are received.

To ensure that the target is SMART so as to com-
ply with Treasury requirements. 

Submit 1st Draft of Annual report 
based on performance and 
preliminary financial report   and 
Final Annual report approved for 
submission to the dti

Target deleted The target was removed as it was deemed to 
be in the ordinary course of the business of 
a schedule 3 entity. It was not linked to any 
strategic objective. (Previously included due to 
poor reporting by the NCC) 

Up to date risk register and risk 
strategy

Target deleted The target was removed as it was deemed to 
be in the ordinary course of the business of 
a schedule 3 entity. It was not linked to any 
strategic objective.  (previously included due to 
lack risk management by NCC)

Participation in national and or 
international Conferences

Participate in 3 international 
Conferences:   
1)  Africa   Dialogue;

2) Spam conference- Lap 10;

3)OECD Conference

The Executive Authority was of the view that 
the NCC should be specific on the conferences it 
intended participating in. 

Participate in 3 National 
Conferences- 1) World 
Consumer Rights day;

2)  World Retail 3) Conference

3) NRCS Conference

1 research report submitted to 
Minister

2 research reports submitted to 
Minister on:

1) Funeral Services; and 

2)Tow Truck Services

The number was increased following consultation 
with the head of the research division. It was 
also agreed with the Executive Authority that the 
research topics be stipulated. 
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2.5 Linking performance with budgets

Objective 1: Administration

Name of sub-
programme

Item Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

Under Expenditure

Compensation of employees 21 482 000 21 424 698 27 302

Goods and services 12 728 000 12 579 770 148 230

Depreciation 745 000 1 739 869 (994 869)

Total 34 955 000 35 744 338 (789 338)

Objective 2:  Promote compliance to Consumer Protection Act

Name of sub-
programme

Item Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

Under Expenditure

Compensation of employees 8 085 000 7 965 961 119 039

Goods and services 5 073 000 2 493 127 2 579 873

Total 13 158 000 10 459 089 2 698 911

Objective 3: Be a well governed and capacitated organization

Name of sub-
programme

Item Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

Under Expenditure

Compensation of employees 3 233 000 3 214 000 19 000

Goods and services 2 030 000 2 014 661 15 339

Total  5 263 000  5 228 662  34 338 
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PART 3:      GOVERNANCE 

3.1               Overview of governance structures 

i) Introduction 

The NCC is an organ of state and is a schedule 3 entity in terms of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999, Act 

No. 1 of 1999 (PFMA). The entity is established by section 85 of the CPA. In terms of section 87 of the CPA, the 

Commissioner of the NCC is responsible for all matters pertaining to the functions of the NCC and is required to 

hold office for an agreed term, not exceeding five years. Provision is however made for reappointment on expiry 

of an agreed term of office. 

The NCC does not have a Board. The Commissioner is the accounting authority for the NCC, and as such, is 

responsible for all income and expenditure, revenue collected, assets and the discharge of all liabilities of 

the NCC; as well as the proper and diligent implementation of the PFMA, in relation to the NCC. Invariably, 

Parliament, the Executive Authority and the Commissioner are responsible for corporate governance.

The Commissioner may assign management or other duties to employees with appropriate skills to assist the 

NCC in the management, or control over the functioning, of the entity and delegate, with or without conditions, 

any of the powers or functions of the Commissioner to any suitably qualified employee of the NCC, but any such 

delegation does not divest the Commissioner of responsibility for the exercise of any power or performance of 

any duty.

The Minister has designated a Deputy Commissioner to perform the functions of the NCC whenever the 

Commissioner is unable for any reason to perform the functions of the Commissioner; or the office of the 

Commissioner is vacant. The Minister of Trade and Industry, in consultation with the Minister of Finance, 

determines the Commissioner’s and Deputy Commissioner’s remuneration, allowances, benefits and other 

terms and conditions of employment.

Corporate governance at the NCC embodies processes and systems by which public entities are directed, 

controlled and held to account. In addition to legislative requirements based on the CPA, corporate governance 

is applied through the precepts of the PFMA and run in tandem with the principles contained in the King Reports 

on Corporate Governance. 

ii) Portfolio Committee

Parliament, through the Portfolio Committee on Trade and Industry (Portfolio Committee) exercises its oversight 

role through evaluating the performance of the NCC by interrogating its strategic and annual performance plans, 

quarterly reports and annual financial statements and other relevant documents which have to be tabled, as 

well as any other documents tabled from time to time.

The Portfolio Committee also exercises oversight over the service delivery performance of the NCC and, in doing 

so, reviews the non-financial information contained in the annual and quarterly reports of the NCC. In exercising 

its oversight function, the Portfolio Committee generally concerns itself with service delivery and enhancing 

economic growth.

The NCC appeared before the Portfolio Committee on three (3) occasions during the year under review. The NCC 

made presentations on its strategic and annual performance plans for the 2014/15 year; the annual report for 

2013/14 year and on its first quarter report for the 2014/15 year. Over and above this, the Portfolio Committee 
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conducted a visit to the NCC offices 29 January 2015.

In all its deliberations with the Portfolio Committee, the NCC has been open and transparent. In return, the NCC 

has received substantial guidance and attended to all concerns raised by the Portfolio Committee. 

iii) Executive Authority

Oversight by the Department of Trade and Industry (Executive Authority) rests by and large on the prescripts of 

the PFMA. The PFMA grants authority to the Executive Authority for the exercise of its oversight powers.

The Executive Authority has entered into a Shareholders Compact with the NCC and a performance agreement 

with the Commissioner. A Compliance Schedule is a critical part of the Shareholders Compact indicating the 

deliverables and due dates of all documents as stipulated in the PFMA, Treasury Regulations and the Shareholders 

Compact. 

The NCC has, in line with the Compliance Schedule, duly complied with all requirements timeously. These would 

include, amongst others, the submission of quarterly reports, management accounts, income and expenditure 

statements with projections, annual financial statements, budget of estimated revenue and expenditure, 

strategic and annual performance plans, fraud prevention plan and risk management plan.  The NCC has also 

reported on its risks, the findings of the Auditor General of South Africa and internal audit as well as on progress 

in addressing these findings.

iv) Committees

In line with the requirements of the PFMA, the NCC has an Audit and Risk Committee. The membership thereof 

is made up of independent persons. The said Committee also has one ex-officio member that served thereon at 

the behest of the Executive Authority. The Audit and Risk Committee Report is included herein. 

v) Risk Management

The NCC revised its management strategy and following approval thereof, implemented it in the course of the 

year. The NCC also evaluated its risks which led to its risk register being revised, approved and implemented. 

Risks have been identified. The risks as contained in the risk register has been monitored regularly and reported 

on at Audit and Risk Committee meetings. Significant progress has been made in addressing identified risks. 

vi) Internal Audit

The purpose of NCC’s internal audit function is to assist the Accounting Authority in maintaining efficient and 

effective controls by evaluating those controls to determine their effectiveness and efficiency, and by developing 

recommendations for enhancement or improvement.

The NCC has outsourced the internal audit function. Internal audit, in consultation with and the approval of the 

Audit and Risk Committee, has prepared and submitted –

a). a rolling three-year strategic internal audit plan based on its assessment of key areas of risk for the institution, 

having regard to its current operations, those proposed in its strategic plan and its risk management strategy;

b). an annual internal audit plan for the first year of the rolling three year strategic internal audit plan;
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c). plans indicating the proposed scope of each audit in the annual internal audit plan; and

d). reports to the Audit and Risk Committee detailing its performance against the annual internal audit plan, to 

allow effective monitoring and possible intervention.

Internal Audit reports administratively to the Accounting Authority and functionally to the Audit and Risk Committee. The 

function is independent of activities that are audited, with no limitation on its access to information. The coverage by 

internal audit in the year under review was an improvement from the previous year.  

The controls subject to evaluation by internal audit encompassed the following-

Activity High Level Scope

Research and 
Knowledge 
Management

· Determine adequacy of the Research Framework, in relation to best practice and 
alignment to the key performance indicators. 

· Determine the adequacy and effectiveness of control to ensure the relevancy, 
completeness, accuracy of research results. 

· Review the adequacy of the system to ensure complete data is collected, stored and 
maintained.  

Audit of Performance 
Information

· Review the adequacy of policies and procedures in place relating to Predetermined 
Objectives \ Performance Management System.

· Review the adequacy and effectiveness of controls in place to ensure that the required 
documents are submitted to relevant authority timely. 

· Review the adequacy of controls in place governing the strategic and operational 
planning and processes. 

· Review the adequacy of the system established and implemented for collecting, 
processing and collating performance information. 

· Verify that mechanisms for reporting on the achievement of strategic and operational 
objectives progress have been developed and adopted.

· Verify that the reporting process is in accordance with the National Treasury guidelines.

· Review the adequacy of systems in place for dealing with non-performance.

Finance – Asset 
Management

· Review accuracy of the Asset Register.

· Review the adequacy and effectiveness of controls to ensure that the Asset Register 
agrees to the financial records. 

· Verify the existence of assets.

· Determine whether there adequate and effective processes in place to ensure proper 
recording of movement of assets.
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Activity High Level Scope

Finance – Supply Chain 
Management

· Determine compliance to the NCC Supply Chain Policies, PFMA, National Treasury 
Regulations and other applicable legislation. 

· Determine if an adequate, effective and transparent tendering process is in place. 

· Review the alignment of procured good and services to the strategic objectives and 
demand plan. 

· Review the effectiveness of contract and performance management. 

· Adequacy and effectiveness of controls to prevent identify record and report irregular, 
fruitless and wasteful expenditure.

· Review the effectiveness and efficiency of supplier rotation. 

· Determine if adequate segregation of duties are being applied. 

· Adequacy and effectiveness of controls surrounding the maintenance of supplier 
database.

Finance – Creditors 
Management 

· System of internal controls within the process is adequate  specifically addressing the 
following: 

o Control and suspense accounts are cleared on a monthly basis;

o Transactions are complete and timeously captured;

o Accounting entries are properly classified; and

o Payments are processed within 30 days.

· Determine if access to suppliers banking details is adequately restricted, and 
where changes have been made; confirm that adequate and sufficient supporting 
documentation has been received from the Creditor.

Information 
Technology

· To determine the adequacy and effectiveness of controls over the following processes:

o Access management

o End-user security

o Change Management

o Physical environment (IT)

o IT continuity

Register and Record 
Management

· Determine the adequacy and effectiveness of the Record Management procedures. 
Including compliance thereto.

· Determine compliance to applicable legislative requirements. 

· Determine if access to records and documentation are restricted to duly authorised 
staff members.
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Activity High Level Scope

Corporate Governance · Determine if a Corporate Governance Framework is in place. If yes, determine the 
adequacy thereof and compliance thereto. 

· Review the adequacy of the governance structures and their compliance to statutory 
requirements. 

· High-level review of the fraud risk management process of NCC, focusing on the 
structure, reporting lines, implementation of the Fraud Prevention Plan, policies, 
framework and strategies.

· Review policies and procedures implemented which governs the IT environment. 

· Adequacy of the ICT governance processes. 

· Review adequacy of the Code of Conduct.

Risk Management · High-level review of the fraud risk management process of NCC, focusing on the 
structure, reporting lines, implementation of the Fraud Prevention Plan, policies, 
framework and strategies.

· Review the existence and adequacy of the ERM Framework at NCC, including Fraud 
Prevention Strategy, Fraud Prevention Plan and Fraud Prevention Policy.  

· Adequate, effective and efficient internal control system over the Enterprise Risk 
Management process. 

· Compliance with policies, procedures, laws regulations and best practice Risk 
Management.

· Assess the alignment of the NCC’s ERM Framework/Risk Management Strategy to 
National Treasury Guidelines, King III, as well as other available best practice.

vii) Fraud and Corruption

The NCC has approved a Fraud Prevention Plan (Plan) which has been work shopped with staff. No acts of 

fraud occurred in the year under review. No acts of fraud were reported on the fraud hot-lines. As a part of 

the Plan, mechanisms are in place to report fraud and corruption. In order to promote fraud prevention, a 

whistle-blowing policy is in place which makes provision for officials to make confidential disclosure about 

suspected fraud and corruption. 
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3.2 ADMINISTRATIVE INFORMATION

For the year ended 31 March 2015

Domicile Republic of South Africa

Legal Form National entity-Schedule 3A  

Nature of Principal Activities
The National Consumer Commission was established in April 2011 in terms of 
the Consumer Protection Act, 68 of 2008, to promote and advance the social and 
economic welfare of consumers in South Africa by establishing a legal framework 
for the achievement and maintenance of a consumer market that is fair, accessible, 
efficient, sustainable and responsible for the benefit of consumers generally.

Executive Authority Dr. Rob Davies

Minister of Trade and Industry

Postal Address Physical Address

the dti Campus 8 Bauhinia Street

77 Mentjies Street Berkley Office Park

Sunnyside Highveld Techno Park

0002 Centurion

0157

Accounting Authority Mr. Ebrahim Mohamed

Commissioner Mr. Ebrahim Mohamed

Deputy Commissioner Ms. Thezi Mabuza

Acting Head of Finance Ms Florah Raphahlela

Bankers Nedbank Limited

Auditor Auditor General South Africa

Contact Information Telephone No. 012 761 3000 

E-mail: complaints@thencc.org.za

Website: www.nccsa.org.za
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3.3 REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015

We are pleased to present our report for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Audit and Risk Committee Members and Attendance

The Audit and Risk Committee consisting of the members listed herein met four times during the year:

tings attended

Independent Non-Executive Members Number of meetings attended

Mr DA Braithwaite (Chairperson) 4

Mrs M Maisela 4

Mr P Semenya 3

Mr K Naidoo (Representing the dti) 4

In addition, the following are standing invitees at each meeting of the Audit and Risk Committee:

• Commissioner

• Deputy Commissioner

• Chief Financial Officer

• Internal Audit Representatives

• Representatives of the Auditor General of South Africa

The Audit and Risk Committee has direct access to the standing invitees in fulfilment of its duties

Audit Committee Responsibilities

The Audit and Risk Committee has complied with its responsibilities arising from the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) 

and Treasury Regulations. 

 Effectiveness of Internal Controls

Systems of control are designed to provide cost effective assurance that assets are safeguarded and that liabilities and working 

capital are efficiently managed.

In line with the PFMA and King III Report requirements relating to the public sector, Internal Audit provides the Audit and Risk 

Committee and management with assurance that internal controls are appropriate and effective. This is achieved by means of 

an appropriate quarterly reporting process, as well as the identification of corrective actions and suggested enhancements to 

the controls and processes. In the absence of a separate Risk Committee, the Audit and Risk Committee has assumed certain 

responsibilities in relation to risk.

40 National Consumer 
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The period of transition since a new Commissioner was appointed on 1 June 2013, referred to in the previous Audit and Risk 

Committee report, has continued into the year under review. The Chief Financial Officer was suspended in September 2013 

and resigned in the early part of the current year. The acting Chief Financial Officer appointed in September 2013 was replaced 

by a permanent appointee only subsequent to the current year end, in June 2015.  

The outsourced Internal Audit service provider conducted audit work in the following prioritised areas:

- Corporate Governance

- Fraud Risk Management

- ICT Governance

- Code of Conduct

- Follow up of previously reported matters

Significant findings were:

- Inadequate follow up on agreed resolutions

- Lack of  consequence for not meeting agreed action plan implementation dates

- Ineffective ICT governance and management

In the areas audited, Internal Audit’s overall conclusion was that some improvement was needed.

Based on the audit work conducted and presented at Audit and Risk Committee meetings for the 2014/15 year, the Commit-

tee concludes that overall controls evaluated during those audits were adequate and materially effective for most of the areas 

tested. However, in certain instances controls were found to be only partially effective and needed further improvement.

Quality of Management Reports

The Audit and Risk Committee was not in all respects satisfied with the content and quality of Quarterly Reports.

Evaluation of the Financial Statements

The Audit and Risk Committee has:

-  Reviewed and discussed with management the Annual Financial Statements as submitted to the Auditor-General   

 for annual audit purposes;

-  Reviewed the final audited Annual Financial Statements, the Auditor-General’s report thereon, the Auditor-General’s 

Final Management Report and management’s responses thereto; 

-  Reviewed the appropriateness of accounting policies and practices;

-  Reviewed adjustments resulting from the annual audit. 

The Audit and Risk Committee concurs with and accepts the conclusions of the Auditor-General on the Annual Financial State-

ments, read together with the report of the Auditor-General. 

Forensic Investigation
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The interventions resulting from a major forensic investigation in 2012/13 in the areas of Supply Chain Management and 

certain aspects of Human Resources continued during the current year with the assistance of the Department of Trade and 

Industry.

External Audit Unresolved Issues

The resolution of External and Internal Audit issues is monitored via a tracking register which is reviewed by the Audit and 

Risk Committee. In the opinion of the Committee, External and Internal Audit issues need to be addressed and resolved with 

greater urgency. In addition, there needs to be specified and enforced consequences where resolution dates are not met.

The following significant external audit matters raised in prior years remained unresolved at the current year end:

2013/14

· Leave management processes not effectively implemented and monitored.

· Inadequate management of fixed assets.

· Ineffective contract management.

2012/13

· Ineffective Information, Communication and Technology systems.

· Failure to recover funds owing to the entity.

Other Matters Pertaining Specifically to the Entity

The Commission has continued its recovery  from the earlier period of dysfunction (referred to by the Committee in its pre-

vious report) whilst at the same time dealing with important matters arising from the prior year forensic investigation also 

referred to earlier. Whilst there is further work to be done, including the urgent resolution of outstanding matters raised by 

external and internal audit, the Committee recognizes the skills shortages and legal assistance delays that have had an impact 

in certain areas. The appointment of a Deputy Commissioner has impacted favourably on the rate of progress. 

Conclusion

Notwithstanding skills shortages and the amount of time that continues to be devoted to what is termed the “legacy of the 

past” considerable further progress has been made during the year under review. 

DA BRAITHWAITE

Chairperson of the Audit Committee

31 July 2015
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3.4  Report of the Auditor-General to Parliament on National Consumer Commission

Report on the financial statements

Introduction

1. I have audited the financial statements of the National Consumer Commission set out on pages 57 to 92, which comprise 
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2015, the statement of financial performance, statement of changes 
in net assets, cash flow statement and the statements of comparison of budget information with actual information for 
the year then ended, as well as the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information.  

Accounting Officer’s responsibility for the financial statements

2. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the 
requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA), and for such 
internal control as the accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-general’s responsibility

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in 
accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), the general notice issued in 
terms thereof and International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements, 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation [and fair presentation] of the financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my unqualified audit 
opinion.

Opinion 

6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the National 
Consumer Commission as at 31 March 2015 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in 
accordance with the SA Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA.

Emphasis of matters 

7. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Significant uncertainties 

8. With reference to Note 22 of the financial statements, the entity has disclosed Accumulated surplus of R3 474 422.  This 
related to the surplus amount which was retained by the entity without approval from National Treasury.  The ultimate 
outcome of this matter cannot presently be determined and no provision for any liability that may result has been made 
in the annual financial statements.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements.

9. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I report the following findings on the 
reported performance information against predetermined objectives for selected programmes presented in the annual 
performance report, non-compliance with legislation as well as internal control. The objective of my tests was to identify 
reportable findings as described under each subheading but not to gather evidence to express assurance on these 
matters. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or conclusion on these matters.

Predetermined objectives

10. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information 
for the following selected programmes presented in the annual performance report of the public entity for the year 
ended 31 March 2015:

• Objective 1: To promote compliance with the Consumer Protection Act.

11. I evaluated the reported performance information against the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability. 

12. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether it was presented in accordance 
with the National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance was consistent with 
the planned programmes. I further performed tests to determine whether indicators and targets were well defined, 
verifiable, specific, measurable, time bound and relevant, as required by the National Treasury’s Framework for managing 
programme performance information (FMPPI).

13. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and 
complete.

14. The material findings in respect of the selected programme is as follows:

 
Reliability of reported performance information

15. The FMPPI requires auditees to have appropriate systems to collect, collate, verify and store performance information to 
ensure valid, accurate and complete reporting of actual achievements against planned objectives, indicators and targets. 
Significantly important targets were not reliable when compared to the source information or evidence provided.  This 
was due to a lack of adequate and reliable evidence to corroborate the date of registration of the registered complaints.

Additional matter

16. I draw attention to the following matter:

Achievement of planned targets

17. Refer to the annual performance report on page 36 to 39 for information on the achievement of the planned targets for 
the year. This information should be considered in the context of the material findings on the reliability of the reported 
performance information for the selected objectives reported in paragraph 15 of this report.
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Compliance with legislation

18. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity had complied with applicable legislation regarding financial 
matters, financial management and other related matters. My findings on material non-compliance with specific matters 
in key legislation as set out in the general notice issued in terms of the PAA are as follows:

Expenditure management

19. The accounting authority did not take effective steps to prevent irregular expenditure as required by section 51(1)(b)(ii) 
of the PFMA.

Internal control

20. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual performance report and compliance 
with legislation. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted 
in the unqualified opinion, the findings on the annual performance report and the findings on non-compliance with 
legislation included in this report.

Financial and performance management 

21. Management did not implement proper record keeping in a timely manner to ensure that complete, relevant and 
accurate information is accessible and available to support performance reporting.

Auditor-General

Pretoria

29 July 2015
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY BY THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY

for the year ended 31 March 2015

The Accounting Authority is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements. The annual financial 

statements conform to Generally Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP) and the reporting requirements of the Public 

Finance Management Act. The statements fairly present the state of affairs of the National Consumer Commission as at the 

end of the financial year, and the results of its operations and cash flows for that period. It is the responsibility of external 

auditors, being the Auditor-General, to report on the fair presentation of the financial statements.

INTERNAL AND ACCOUNTING CONTROLS

The Accounting Authority is ultimately responsible for the internal controls of the NCC. The system of internal control is 

designed to provide reasonable assurance of the integrity and reliability of the financial statements of the NCC and to 

adequately safeguard, verify and maintain accountability for funds and assets. Management and the Audit and Risk Committee 

have implemented a risk management policy and regularly review the risk register and the system of internal control. The NCC 

has implemented monitoring controls through comprehensive budgeting and the submission of operating reports as per the 

timeframes agreed upon in the shareholders’ agreement signed with the Department of Trade and Industry.

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

The NCC has established an Audit and Risk Committee which consists of three non-executive committee members. The 

committee meets at least two times per annum.  The Audit and Risk Committee is governed and operates within the framework 

of the terms of the Audit Committee Charter. The committee ensures effective communication between the Accounting 

Authority, Internal Audit and the Auditor-General.

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, as management has a reasonable expectation 

that the NCC will have adequate resources to continue its operational existence. The annual financial statements are prepared 

in accordance with accounting policies as set out in the Notes to the Annual Financial Statements which are supported by 

judgements, estimates and assumptions in compliance with GRAP.

_____________________

Mr Ebrahim Mohamed

Commissioner

National Consumer Commission 
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2015 

Note March March

2015 2014

R R

Assets

Current assets 10,463,296 6,998,600

Cash and cash equivalents 3 9,271,806  6,931,849

Receivables from exchange transactions 4 31,132  32,341

Prepayments 5 1,137,415 -

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 6 22,943  34,410

Non-current assets 3,214,088 3,353,133

Property, plant and equipment 1 2,551,440  2,578,779

Intangible assets 2 662,648  774,354

  

Total assets 13,677,384 10,351,733

Liabilities

Current liabilities 2,703,699 2,653,224

Payables from exchange transactions 7 1,745,341 1,707,612

Provisions 18   958,358 945,612

Non-current liabilities 377,364 581,171

Operating lease liability 8 377,364  581,171

  

Total liabilities 3,081,063 3,234,395

Net assets

Accumulated surplus 10,596,321 7,117,338

Total liabilities and net assets 10,596,321 7,117,338



ANNUAL REPORT      2014-15 59

Statement of Financial Performance as at 31 March 2015

Note         March March  

2015 2014

R R

Revenue

Government grant and subsidies 9.1
53,376,000 45,498,094

Interest received – investment 9.2 1,522,431 358,043

Other income 9.2 8,080 14,250

Total revenue 54,906,511 45,870,387

Expenditure

Employee related costs 10 32,605,458  28,045,226

General Expenses 16 16,995,786  14,950,959

Finance costs    - 26,418

Repairs and maintenance 92,962 105,823

Bad debts 10,942 (34,656)

Depreciation and amortisation 12 1,736,656  1,822,520

Total expenditure 51,441,804 44,916,290

Surplus for the period  3,464,707 954,097
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets as at 31 March 2015

R R

Note Accumulated   surplus    Total net assets

Balance at 1 April 2013                        6,163,241   6,163,241

Surplus for the year                            954,097                        954,097

Balance as at 31 March 2014                                        
7,117,338

  7,117,338

Balance as at 1 April 2014 7,117,338    7,117,338

Prior year errors 27

                          

                          14,276

                      

                      14,276

Surplus for the period 3,464,707 3,474,422

Balance as at 31 March  2015 

10,596,321 10,606,036
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Cash Flow Statement as at 31 March 2015

 Note  March  March  

2015 2014

                               R                              R

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipts from customer 54,877,428 45,803,902

Grants 53,376,000 45,477,824

Other income - 376

Interest income 1,501,428 325,702

Cash paid to suppliers and employees 50,877,001 41,316,805

Employee costs  32,605,458  27,954,894

Suppliers  18,271,543  13,335,493

Finance costs - 26,418

Net cash flows from operating activities 15
 4,000,427 4,487,097

Cash flows from investing activities (1,660,470) (1,817,800)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (971,094) (1,223,779)

Movement in receivables - 337,044

Movement in payables - (334,634)

Purchase of intangible assets (689,376) (596,431)

  

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash 
equivalents

 2,339,957 2,669,297

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of 
the year

6,931,849 4,262,552

Total cash and cash equivalents 3  9,271,806 6,931,849
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts as at 31 March 2015

Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved 
Budget

Adjust-
ments

Final Budget Actual 
amounts on 
comparable 

basis

Difference 
between 

final 
budget and 

actual

R R R R R

Statement of Financial Performance

Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions

Interest income – investment - -      1,522,431      1,522,431

Other income - -            8,080            8,080

Total revenue from exchange 
transactions

- -  1,530,511  1,530,511

Revenue from non-exchange

 Transactions

Government grants and subsidies 53,376,000 -  53,376,000 53,376,000 -

Total revenue    53,376,000  53,376,000  54,906,511   1,530,511

Expenditure

Employee related cost (32,800,000)                       - (32,800,000)   (32,605,458)         194,542

Depreciation and amortisation (745,000)                    -           (745,000)     (1,736,656)        (991,656)

Finance costs                     -                    -                      -    - -

Repairs and maintenance (93,000)                    -            ( 93,000)         (92,962)                 38

General expenses (19,738,000) -      (19,738,000)   (17,006,728)       2,731,272

Total expenditure  (53,376,000)                     - (53,376,000)   (51,441,804)       1,934,196

Surplus before taxation                     -                     -                       -       3,464,707       3,464,707

Actual amount on comparable                      -                     - -       3,464,707       3,464,707

basis as presented in the Budget and 
Actual 

Comparative statement
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SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

for the year ended 31 March 2015

1. PRESENTATION OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with the prescribed standards of Generally 

Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), and are inclusive of all directives, interpretations and guidelines issued 

by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) in accordance with the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA). The 

annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with 

the historical cost convention.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the annual financial statements are set out 

below. Assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses are not offset, except where offsetting is required or permitted 

by a standard of GRAP. The accounting policies have been applied consistently in all material aspects, unless 

otherwise indicated. The details of any changes are explained in the relevant policy notes.

Additional information has been disclosed to enhance the usefulness of the annual financial statements and to 

comply with the relevant legislative requirements of the PFMA.

The Cash Flow Statement is prepared on the direct cost method.

1.2 GOING CONCERN 

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with accounting policies applicable 

to going concerns. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the 

realization of assets, the settlements of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the 

ordinary course of business.

1.3 USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 

The preparation of the annual financial statements in conformity with GRAP requires the use of certain critical 

accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgements, estimates and assumptions in 

the process of applying the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and 

expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 

on an ongoing basis. 

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any 

future financial periods affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation and uncertainty, 

and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have material effect on the amounts recognised in 

the financial statements, are included in the notes to the financial statements.

1.4 PRESENTATION CURRENCY 
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The annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand (ZAR), which is the currency in which 

the entity’s transactions are denominated. All financial information has been expressed in SA Rand. Unless 

otherwise stated, all financial figures have been rounded off to the nearest rand.

1.5 REVENUE (NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS)

Government grants

Government grants comprise gross inflows of economic benefits, and are recognised as revenue when it is 

probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity, and the fair value of those benefits can be reliably 

measured. Grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that they will be received or when there 

is legal obligation for the grant to be paid, and only to the extent that the entity has complied with any of the 

stipulations or conditions attached to the grant.

1.6 REVENUE (EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS)

Interest 

Revenue arising from the use by others of the entity assets yielding interest, royalties and dividends, is recognised 

when:

- It is probable that economic benefits or service potential associated with the transactions will flow to 

the entity; and

- The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest rate.

Other income 

Other Income is recognised on an accrual basis.

1.7 FINANCE EXPENSES

All finance costs are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance using the effective interest rate 

method.

1.8 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at the bank and cash on 

hand. These are initially and subsequently recorded at fair value.

1.9 OTHER RECEIVABLES

Other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using 

the effective interest rate method, less any provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of other 

receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the entity will not be able to collect all amounts 
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due according to the original terms of the receivables.

Significant financial difficulties of any debtor, probability that the debtor will be bankrupt or under financial 

reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue), are considered indicators 

that the receivable is impaired.

The provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated 

future cash flows, which is discounted using the effective interest rate and recognised in the Statement of 

Financial Performance. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written-off are then recognised in the 

Statement of Financial Performance.

1.10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Initial recognition:

Property, plant and equipment are resources controlled by the entity as a result of past events and are recognised 

in the Statement of Financial Position only when:

- it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the asset will flow to the 

entity; and

- the cost or fair value of the item can be measured reliably.

All items of property, plant and equipment that qualify for recognition as an asset are measured at cost, 

or if acquired at no cost, at fair value on the date of acquisition.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The entity’s management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for property, 

plant and equipment and intangible assets. These estimates are based on the condition and use of the individual 

assets, in order to determine the remaining period over which the assets can and will be used. Assets transferred 

to the entity are recognised at the book value on the date the assets are received and are assessed for any 

evidence of impairment.

Measurement at Recognition:

Costs for acquired assets include:-

- the items’ purchase prices, including import duties, non-refundable taxes, after deducting any trade 

discounts and rebates;

- any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be 

capable of operating in the manner as intended by management;

- the initial estimates of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is 

located, the obligation for which the Entity incurs either when the item is acquired, or as a consequence 

of having used the item during a particular period.

The cost of self-constructed assets is determined using the same principles as for an acquired assets and 

includes the cost of materials, direct labour and other resources incurred in constructing the asset, any costs 

directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location, and condition necessary for it to be capable of 
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operating in the manner intended by management, and an initial estimate where relevant of the costs of 

dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located.

Subsequent costs, such as replacement costs, are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a 

separate asset, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to 

the entity and the cost of the item can be reliably measured. The carrying amount of parts of items that are 

replaced is derecognised in accordance with recognition provisions.

All other costs such as day-to-day servicing and small parts are treated as repairs and maintenance, and are 

charged to the Statement of Financial Performance during the financial period in which they are incurred. 

After recognition as an asset, the entity applies the cost model as its accounting policy. An item of property, 

plant and equipment is carried at its cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment 

losses. Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives and are significant, 

they are accounted for as separate items of property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation:

Depreciation is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance and is calculated on a straight-line basis 

over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment. Each part of an item 

of property, plant and equipment, with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item, is 

depreciated separately. Depreciation is calculated on the cost less the expected residual value of an item of 

property, plant and equipment, and begins when an asset is available for use.

The period over which the various categories are depreciated is detailed below:

Item Average useful life

Computer equipment 3 years

Furniture and fittings 10 years

Leasehold improvements 1 - 5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are re-assessed annually and adjusted if necessary at the 

end of each reporting period.

Impairment:

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is indication that any item of property, plant and 

equipment may be impaired. If such an indication exists, the entity estimates the recoverable service amount 

of the asset. 

In assessing whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the entity considers both external 

and internal sources of information.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell, and its value in use. Value in use 

is the present value of the asset’s remaining service potential. If either of these amounts exceeds the asset’s 

carrying value, the asset is not impaired, and it is not necessary to determine the other amount. If the asset’s 

carrying value exceeds its recoverable service amount, the asset is impaired. The carrying amount of the asset 

is then reduced to its recoverable service amount, and this reduction is the impairment loss which is charged as 

an expense to the Statement of Financial Performance.
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Reversal of impairment:

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised 

in prior periods for an asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the entity 

estimates the recoverable service amount of that asset. The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable 

to a reversal of an impairment loss shall not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined 

(net of depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods. A reversal of an 

impairment loss for an asset is recognised immediately in the Statement of Financial Performance. After a 

reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation charge for the asset is adjusted in future periods 

to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its 

remaining useful life.

Derecognition:

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal, or when no 

future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from 

the recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined by comparing the proceeds from 

disposal with the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment, and is recognised in the Statement of 

Financial Performance when the item is derecognised.

  

1.11 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Initial recognition:

Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance and are only recognised when:

- it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the asset will flow to 
the entity; and

- the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

For those intangible assets with a definite useful life:

- Amortisation is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance and is calculated on a straight line 

basis over the estimated useful life of each part of the intangible asset;

- Amortisation is determined from the date the intangible asset is available for use in the location and 

condition as intended by management.

Measurement at recognition:

Initial expenditure incurred is recognised and capitalised only when it increases the future economic 

benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in the 

Statement of Financial Performance as an expense when it is incurred. All intangible assets of the entity 

are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred in order to acquire and bring the assets into use. 

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent expenditure on capitalised intangible assets is recognised and capitalised only when the costs 
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incurred increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other 

subsequent expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance as an expense when it is 

incurred.

Amortisation:

Intangible assets are measured at historic cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment 

losses. Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Item Average useful life

Computer software 2 years

Amortisation methods and useful lives are reassessed annually and adjusted if necessary at the end of each 

reporting period. Amortisation is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance on a straight-line basis 

over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets unless such lives are indefinite. Intangible assets with an 

indefinite useful life are systematically tested for impairment at each reporting date. Other intangible assets are 

amortised from the date they are available for use.

Impairment:

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life or an intangible asset not yet available for use are tested annually 

for impairment by comparing the carrying amount with the recoverable amount of the intangible asset. 

Different intangible assets may be tested for impairment at different times.

If the intangible asset’s carrying value exceeds its recoverable service amount, the intangible asset is impaired. 

The carrying amount of the asset is then reduced to its recoverable service amount, and this reduction is the 

impairment loss which is charged as an expense to the Statement of Financial Performance.

Reversal of impairment:

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised 

in prior periods for an asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the entity 

estimates the recoverable service amount of that asset. The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable 

to a reversal of an impairment loss shall not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net 

of amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss for an asset is recognised immediately in the Statement of Financial 

Performance. After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the amortisation charge for the asset is 

adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a 

systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Derecognition:

The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits 

are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the recognition of an intangible asset is 

determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of the intangible asset, and is 

recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance when the item is derecognised.
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1.12 LEASES

Finance leases

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to 

the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding 

liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as the finance lease obligation. Leases of 

assets are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and 

rewards of ownership to the lessee.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if 

lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payment. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included 

in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between 

the finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the 

remaining balance of the liability. The finance leases are measured at fair value in subsequent periods.

Operating leases

Leases under which the lessors effectively retain the risks and benefits of ownership are classified as operating 

leases. Obligations incurred under operating leases are charged to the statement of financial performance in 

equal instalments over the lease period. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight 

line basis over the lease term. The difference between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual 

payments are recognised as operating lease liabilities. This liability is not discounted.

1.13 PROVISIONS AND OTHER LIABILITIES

A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount. Provisions are recognised as liabilities when the entity 

has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, for which it is probable that an outflow 

of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation, and a 

reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present 

obligation at the reporting date. The best estimate is determined by management judgement, supplemented by 

experience of similar transactions, and in certain cases reports from independent experts. 

1.14 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingent liability

The entity does not recognise a contingent liability, but discloses details of any contingencies in the notes to the 

financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service 

potential is remote.

A contingent liability is:

- a possible obligation that arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 

the entity; or

- a present obligation that arises from past events, but which is not recognised because it is not probable 
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that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits; or

- where service potential will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot 

be measured with sufficient reliability.

Commitments

Commitments represent goods/services that have been ordered but no delivery has taken place at the reporting 

date. These amounts are not recognised in the statement of financial position as a liability or as expenditure in 

the statement of financial performance. However, the amounts are disclosed as part of disclosure notes in the 

financial statements.

1.15 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Prior year comparatives are provided for in the annual financial statements. When the presentation or 

classification of items in the annual financial statements is amended, prior period comparative amounts are 

also reclassified and restated, unless such comparative reclassification and / or restatement is not required by a 

standard of GRAP. The nature and reason for such reclassifications and restatements are also disclosed. Where 

material accounting errors, which relate to prior periods, have been identified in the current year, the correction 

is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly.

1.16 IRREGULAR  EXPENDITURE

Irregular expenditure is expenditure incurred in contravention of, or not in accordance with a requirement of 

any applicable legislation, including the PFMA. On discovery of alleged irregular expenditure, such expenditure 

is left in the expenses account and the Accounting Authority will record the details of the expenditure in the 

irregular expenditure register. 

The Accounting Authority must investigate the alleged irregular expenditure to determine whether the 

expenditure meets the definition of irregular expenditure.

If the investigation reveals that the expenditure does not constitute irregular expenditure, the amount will be 

retained in the irregular expenditure register for completeness. Should the investigation reveal that the amount 

is in fact an irregular expenditure, the Accounting Authority will report in writing the details of the expenditure 

to National Treasury.

 

1.17 FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure that was made in vain, and would have been avoided had 

reasonable care been exercised. Such expenditure is treated as a current asset in the Statement of Financial 

Position until such expenditure is recovered from the responsible official or written-off as irrecoverable.

 

1.18 UNAUTHORISED EXPENDITURE

Unauthorised expenditure means:

- overspending on the budget; or
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- expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of the budget.

All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Financial 

Performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with 

the nature of the expense and if recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of 

Financial Performance.

 

1.19 BUDGET INFORMATION

A reconciliation between the Statement of Financial Performance and the budget is included in the annual 

financial statements, as disclosure is required by National Treasury, as the annual financial statements and 

the budget are not on the same basis of accounting. Refer to note 19:  Reconciliation between budget and 

statement of financial performance.

1.20 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT

Short-term employee benefits

The costs of short-term employee benefits (those benefits payable within twelve months after the service has 

been rendered) are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered and not discounted. Short-term 

benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.

Provident, pension and post-retirement benefits

Payments to defined contribution plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. Payments made to State 

retirement benefit schemes are recognised as defined contribution plans where the entity’s obligation under 

the scheme is equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan. Contributions to 

the defined contribution fund are charged to the Statement of Financial Performance in the year to which they 

relate. 

1.21 TAXATION

The entity’s income received is exempt from taxation in terms of Section 10 (1) (CA) of the Income Tax Act. 

1.22 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Recognition

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other 

liabilities (accruals) and other payables. All non-derivative financial instruments, other than financial instruments 

at fair value through profit and loss, are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction 

costs. All non-derivative financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss are initially recognised at fair 

value excluding any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition non-derivative 

financial instruments are classified and measured as described in the individual notes below. 
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(A) Financial Assets

Classification and subsequent measurement

The entity classifies its financial assets in the following categories: 

- at fair value through profit or loss, 

- loans and receivables, available-for-sale and held to maturity. 

The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management 

initially recognises and determines the classification of its financial assets at acquisition date.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial assets at fair value through the Statement of Financial Performance (profit or loss) 

are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired 

principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term. Derivatives are also categorised as held 

for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current 

assets. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at fair value 

with changes in fair value being recognised directly in Statement of Financial Performance.

(ii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments 

that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except if they have 

maturities greater than twelve months after the end of the reporting period. These are classified 

as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 

the effective interest rate method less any impairment loss. Interest income is recognised in the 

Statement of Financial Performance by applying the effective interest rate.

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category 

or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the 

investment matures or management intends to dispose of it within twelve months of the end of 

the reporting period. Available for sale financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value 

with changes in fair value being recognised directly in net assets (equity). 

(iv) Held-to-maturity financial assets

Held-to-maturity assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments 

and fixed maturity that an entity has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity other 

than:

- those that the entity upon initial recognition designates as at fair value through profit or 

loss;
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- those that the entity designates as available for sale; and

- those that meet the definition of loans and receivables.

They are included in non-current assets unless the investment matures or management intends 

to dispose of it within twelve months of the end of the reporting period. Held-to-maturity assets 

are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any 

impairment loss. Interest income is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance by 

applying the effective interest rate.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognized only when:

- the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived;

- it transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial 

asset; or

- the entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial 

asset, has transferred control of the asset to another party who has the practical ability to sell the 

asset in its entirety, and to exercise that ability unilaterally.

Any difference between the consideration received and the amounts recognised and derecognised, is 

recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance in the period of the transfer. A financial asset is 

transferred only if either:

- contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset are transferred; or

- control of the asset is transferred to another party.

(B) Financial Liabilities

Classification

Financial liabilities are classified at fair value through profit or loss or held at amortised cost. The 

classification depends on the purpose for which the financial liabilities were acquired. Management 

determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition (trade date).

(i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

 Financial liabilities at fair value through the Statement of Financial Performance (profit or loss) 

are financial liabilities held for trading. A financial liability is classified in this category if acquired 

principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for 

trading unless they are designated as hedges. Liabilities in this category are classified as current 

liabilities. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at fair 

value with changes in fair value being recognised directly in Statement of Financial Performance.

(ii) Financial liabilities held at amortised cost

 On initial recognition financial liabilities held at amortised cost are measured at their fair value 

plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liability. The 

financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate 
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method. Interest expense is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance by applying 

the effective interest rate.

Derecognition

The entity removes a financial liability or a part of a financial liability, from its Statement of Financial Position 

when, and only when, it is extinguished, i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or 

cancelled or expires. The entity recognises the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability, 

or part of a financial liability, extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including 

any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.23 IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

Non-Financial Assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there 

is any indication of impairment. If any indication of impairment exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is 

estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating 

unit exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell, and its value in use. In 

assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to that 

asset. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for an asset is reversed if, and only if, there has been a change 

in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable service amount since the last impairment loss was 

recognised. If this is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable service amount. 

This increase is a reversal of an impairment loss.

The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss shall not exceed the 

carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment 

loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.

Financial Assets

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it 

is impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events 

that have had a negative effect on the estimated cash flows of that asset can be reliably estimated. Individually 

significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets are 

assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics. An impairment loss is reversed if 

the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised. All 

impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.24 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position 

when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an intention to settle on 

a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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1.25 RELATED PARTIES 

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources or obligations between related parties, regardless of 

whether a price is charged. Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other 

party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions or if the 

related party entity and another entity are subject to common control.

However, related party transactions exclude transactions with any other entity that is a related party solely 

because of its economic dependence on the reporting entity or the sphere of Government of which it forms 

part.

Key management is defined as being individuals with the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and 

controlling the day-to-day activities of the entity. All those key officials who report directly to the Commissioner 

are considered to be related party of the entities.

1.26 EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

Events after the reporting date, are those events both favourable and unfavourable that occur between the 

reporting date and the date when the Financial Statements are authorised for issue, and are treated as follows: 

(a) Amounts recognised in the annual financial statements are adjusted where those events  provide 

evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date , and

(b) Amounts recognised in the annual financial statements are not adjusted where those events are indicative 

of conditions that arose after the reporting date. 

1.27 EFFECT OF THE NEW STANDARD OF GRAP ISSUED

The following approved Standards of GRAP that have been issued, but are not yet effective, are not likely to 

affect the annual financial statements when they are adopted, as these Standards have been used to formulate 

and inform the current accounting policies and disclosures: 

- GRAP 20 - Related party disclosures

- GRAP 25 - Employee benefits

- GRAP 18 - Segment reporting

- GRAP 105 - Transfer of functions between entities under common control;

- GRAP 106 - Transfer of functions between entities not under common control 

- GRAP 107 – Mergers
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements as at 31 March 2015

 

March March

2015 2014
                                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                                                                                 R                                 R

3. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 10,000 2,000

Bank balances 5,435,919 6,929,849

Short-term notice deposits 3,825,887 -

 9,271,806 6,931,849

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash, current account and short-term, highly liquid investments that are held 

with the Corporation of Public Deposits. Cash and cash equivalents are measured at realisable value. NCC was 

exempted by the National Treasury from the requirement of Treasury Regulation 31.3 to invest funds with the 

Corporation for Public Deposits. The notice deposits are carried at an effective floating interest rate that varied 

from 5.90% to 6.13% during the financial year.

4. Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions

Accrued interest 21,003 32,341

Other receivables 3,361,407 3,340,336

Less: Provision for doubtful debts   (3,351,278) (3,340,336)

         31,132              32,341

5. Prepayments

Prepaid expenses (TV campaign) 1,137,415 -

1,137,415              -

6. Trade and other receivables from non-exchange transactions

Staff debtors 22,943 34,410

        22,943              34,410

7. Trade and other payables from exchange transactions

Accounts payable 141,628 900,999

Accrued expenses 1,603,713 806,613

    1,745,341         1,707,612

8. Operating lease liability

Operating lease liability 377,364 581,171

       377,364            581,171
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements as at 31 March 2015

Following negotiations during October 2013 between the NCC and the owner of the buildings occupied by the NCC, the 

annual increase of 10% per annum was decreased to 5% per annum for the remainder of the contract period. 

March March

2015 2014
                                                                                                            

                                                                                                                             R                                   R

9. Revenue

Revenue from non-exchange 

transactions 
  53,376,000 45,498,094

Revenue from exchange transactions
 1,530,511 372,293

  54,906,511       45,870,387

  9.1 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Government grant and subsidies  53,376,000 44,516,000

Transfers received – other               - 961,824

Transfer of assets (DTI)                    - 20,270

53,376,000       45,498,094

9.2 Revenue from exchange transactions

Interest income – investment  1,522,431 358,043

Other income (supplier discount) 8,080 14,250

    1,530,511            372,293

10. Employee related costs

Salaries, bonuses and allowances   29,835,908 25,501,247

Increase: Leave provision 12,746 130,537

Employer contributions 2,756,804 2,413,442

  32,605,458       28,045,226
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements as at 31 March 2015

11. Pension: Defined contribution plan

NCC provides a defined benefit scheme for its employees, which is the Government Employees Pension Fund 

(GEPF). The fund is funded by payments from employees and NCC. NCC’s contributions to the GEPF are charged 

to the Statement of Financial Performance in the year to which they relate. NCC is not liable for any deficit due to 

the difference between the present value of the benefit obligations and the fair value of the assets managed by 

the GEPF. Any potential liabilities are disclosed in the financial statements of the National Revenue Fund and not 

in the financial statements of NCC.

12. Depreciation and amortisation 

Property, plant and equipment 935,574 1,117,550

Intangible assets 801,082 704,970

    1,736,656         1,822,520

13. Taxation 

The NCC is exempted from Income Tax in terms of Section 10(1) (CA) of the Income Tax Act.

14. Commitments

Operating lease commitments

At the date of the statement of financial position, the NCC had outstanding commitments which relate to office 

building, which are due as follows:      2015

            Office Building                    Total 

Due within the next six months     2,536,675   2,536,675

Due for the remainder of contract 5,327,018 5,327,018

    7,863,693         7,863,693

The NCC renegotiated the operating lease for the building during the 2012/13 financial year. The new lease is 

effective over the same period as the previous lease, and will expire on 30 September 2016. The new lease allows 

for an escalation of 5% per annum, with increases being effective on 1 October of each remaining year of the lease.

Printing and publications 156,248

Reallocation costs 18,600

Stationery 27,750

Subscriptions 15,103

Biometric access control 142,950

Security cameras 38,877

Tablets 121,072

Advertising – SABC TV and radio adverts 899,751

Advertising – SABC TV slots 1,000,402

2,420,753
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements as at 31 March 2015

15. Reconciliation of net cash flows from operating activities to surplus

March             March

2015              2014
                                                                                                        

         R                              R

Surplus per Statement of Financial Performance     3,464,707 954,097

Non-cash adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 1,736,656 1,822,520

Assets transferred from the dti -     (20,270)

Accrued interest (21,003)   (32,341)

Loss on disposal of assets          62,859       185,419

Operating lease liability- movement      (203,807) 447,095

Leave provision – movement          12,746 130,537

Bad debts          10,942 (34,656)

Discount received          (8,080) (14,250)

Movement in receivables                    - (32,360)

Other non-cash items 32,417      -

Assets received, but not indicated in fixed assets register                   - (113,228)

Shortfall SARS                   - 19,996

Changes in working capital

Increase in trade and other receivable       (1,124,739) 971,290

Decrease in trade and other payables       37,729 203,248

Net cash inflows from operating activities  4,000,427  4,487,097
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements as at 31 March 2015

16. Operational expenses: March             March

2015            2014
                                                                                                               

                                                                                                                           R                               R

Advertising     2,210,321 216,007

Audit fees- external     1,857,303 1,759,836

Audit fees-internal        475,540 371,943

Bank charges     26,626 103,126

Bad debts     10,942 (34,656)

Catering 245,976 61,145

Computer services 348,162 87,691

Communication 377,928 1,165,967

Contractors     1,764,072 1,655,920

Consultant cost 557,684 1,108,098

Consumables/Groceries 21,686 6,860

Finance costs (Penalties and Fines) - 26,418

Insurance cost 71,235 62,338

Legal fees 417,186 149,597

Lease payments     5,020,778 5,444,037

Postage and courier 7,598 4,105

Printing and publication 728,282 598,410

Stationery 633,477 235,732

Damaged assets 62,859 185,419

Repairs and maintenance 92,962 105,824

Software licences 547,186 370,338

Subscription 5,180 -

Strategic planning costs - 59,884

Temporary employees 5,900 24,638

Training and development 151,962 -

Travel and subsistence 959,424 757,782

Water and electricity 466,830 451,440

Venue and facilities          32,591 70,645

             Total   17,099,690       15,048,544
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements as at 31 March 2015 
 

17. Financial assets and liabilities by category

The NCC’s financial instruments comprise:

Financial assets recognised at cost

March             March

2015              2014
                                                                                                                            

              R                                R

Cash and cash equivalents  9,271,806 6,931,849 

Trade and other receivables-

 exchange transactions    

 

31,132 32,341

Trade and other receivables-

 non- exchange transactions 22,943 34,410

9,325,881 6,998,600

Financial liabilities recognised at fair value

 Trade and other payables 1,745,341 1,707,612

             Operating lease liability 377,364 581,171

2,122,705 2,288,783

The revenue and expenses that are included in the Statement of Financial Performance are detailed below per 

category of financial instrument.

Income from cash and cash equivalents

Finance income 1,522,431 358,043

Financial instruments

Potential concentration of credit risk consists mainly of cash and cash equivalents, and trade and other receivables. 

Other receivables consist of accrued interest and prepayments, for which the credit risk is limited as interest 

receivables from the bank and prepayments are minimal.

As at 31 March 2015, the NCC did not consider there to be any significant concentration of credit risk which had not 

been insured or adequately provided for.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements as at 31 March 2015

Risk Management

Credit Risk

Credit risk consists of mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade receivables. The entity only deposits cash 

with major banks with high credit standing, and limits exposure.

Interest rate risk

Interest risk is that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate owing to changes in market interest rates. The NCC 

is exposed to interest rate changes in respect of returns on its investment with a financial institution. The National 

Consumer Commission’s exposure to interest rate risk is managed by investing on a short term basis in current 

accounts and at the Corporation of Public Deposits.

Foreign exchange risk management

The NCC is not exposed to any foreign exchange risk.

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired

Trade and other receivables that are less than one month past due are not considered to be impaired. At 31 March 

2015, there were no debts that were past due but not impaired. (2014: none)

Trade and other receivables impaired

As of 31 March 2015, trade and other receivables of R3,361,407 (2014: R3,340,336) were impaired and provided for. 

Factors taken into account when considering impairment included the age of the debt and the likelihood of recovery.

 March             March

 2015               2014
                                                                                                                           R                                  R

The ageing of impaired suppliers’ debts is as follows:

Not due -      -

31–120 days past due 21,071  -

120–365 days past due - -

More than 365 days past due 3,340,336 3,340,336

3,361,407 3,340,336
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements as at 31 March 2015

Reconciliation of allowance for impairment of trade and other receivables

Opening balance 3,340,336 3,374,992 

Provision for doubtful debts 10,942 (34,656)

Closing balance   3,351,278 3,340,336

The creation and release of the provision for impaired receivables have been included in operating expenses 

as a surplus. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying amount of each class of 

receivables mentioned above.

18. Reconciliation of provision for leave pay

Opening balance 945,612 815,075 

Leave provision expense-movement 12,746 130,537

Closing balance   958,358 945,612

The human resources policy of the NCC stipulates that all officials are required to take 

accumulated annual leave days within the first six months period of the next leave

cycle, failing which those leave days accrued to the officials are forfeited.

19. Reconciliation between budget and Statement of Financial Performance

  Reconciliation of budget surplus/deficit with the surplus in the Statement of Financial Performance:

    March   

     2015

        R

       March   

        2014

           R

Net surplus per the statement of      

financial performance  3,464,707            954,097

Adjusted for:

Other income         (8,080) (14,250)

Interest income (1,522,431) (358,043)

Payroll expenditure lower 

than budget (194,542) (295,542)

Operational expenditure 

lower than budget (1,739,654) (286,262)

Net surplus per approved budget - -
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements as at 31 March 2015

Material differences between budget and actual amounts

The NCC received an annual grant from the Department of Trade and Industry. Other income received 

comprises interest on an investment at the Corporation of Public Deposit, and interest on the current account 

exceeded the budget by R1,522,431 as a result of timeous transfer of excess funds to the account.

Payroll expenditure is below budget by 1% as a result of vacant positions.

The Operational expenditure that was R1,748, 571 (8%) higher than the originally approved budget was due 

to additional spending on advertising, catering, travel and subsistence, and assets following the approval 

that was received from National Treasury on 5 November 2014 for the retention of surpluses of the previous 

financial years

20. Accumulated surplus

Accumulated surplus at the end of the 2012/13 financial year amounted to R3,974,000, whereas it amounted 

to R954,097 for the 2013/14 financial year. Approval to retain the surplus was granted by the National Treasury 

via Department of Trade and Industry on 5 November 2014

During 2014/15 financial year, NCC had a surplus on the Statement of Financial Performance of R3,464,707, for 

which the entity is awaiting approval from National Treasury.

21. Contingent liabilities 
 
There were no contingent liabilities at 31 March 2015. Contingent liabilities at 31 March 2014 were dealt with as 
follows: 

CCMA Arbitration Matter

The matter has been settled at the CCMA. 

 
RAM 77 AT-R Construction CC

During the 2013/14 financial year, RAM 77 AT-R Construction CC indicated that it intended proceeding against

the NCC. Following discussions held with its attorneys, no proceedings have been instituted and the likelihood

of it proceeding is remote. 

 
IZWELETHU PROTECTION SERVICES

During the 2013/14 financial year, IZWELETHU PROTECTION SERVICES indicated that it intended proceeding against 
the NCC.

Following discussions held with its attorneys, no proceedings have been instituted and the likelihood of it

proceeding is remote. 

Details of contingent liabilities for 2013/14 are as follows:

 CCMA Arbitration Matter

 Alleged unfair termination of two fixed term contracts. The amount being claimed is R630 000. The   

 matter is yet to be finalised.

 

 RAM 77 AT-R Construction CC

 RAM 77 AT-R Construction CC (RAM) was contracted to provide a Call Centre Management System (CCMS)

to the NCC. The contract was further awarded to a subcontractor. The CCMS was never provided to the 
NCC. The NCC was informed that legal action would be taken against the NCC for breach in terms of the 
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agreement. The amount being claimed is R1 305 875. No further proceedings in this matter. However the 
matter has not prescribed.

IZWELETHU PROTECTION SERVICES 

Izwelethu Protection Services had been awarded a contract to provide security services to the NCC. Due to non-
performance on

their part, being that thefts occurred during their time at the NCC, their services were terminated. Izwelethu

are claiming damages for the remaining period of the contract. The amount being claimed is R375 000. No

further proceedings in this matter. However the matter has not prescribed.

22. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

March        March

2015        2014
                                                                                                                                                                       R                                R

            Opening balance 3,601,857 3,575,439

            Add: Fruitless and wasteful  

             expenditure incurred 2014/15 11,300 26,418

            Closing balance 3,613,157 3,601,857

The 2014/15 fruitless and wasteful expenditure of R11,300 relates to the catering for an education and 

awareness event that did not materialise as NCC officials were unable to travel to the event owing to the late 

delivery of the vehicle hired to transport them there.
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23. Irregular expenditure

             Opening balance 30,329,402 23,410,046

             Add: Irregular expenditure incurred 7,329,293 6,919,356

             Less: Amounts condoned (30,329,402) -

             Closing balance  7,329,293 30,329,402

              Details of irregular expenditure (not condoned)

            Invitation for competitive bids not 

            advertised within 21 days as per 

            Treasury Regulations.

 

    5,418,771 5,167,996

            Procurement process not followed as 

            per Treasury Regulations.

          
1,539,166 834,414

            Irregular in terms of the preferential      

            Scoring system not applied

       

         77,132 255,471

            Documentation/contracts stolen
    

       294,224 655,023

            Goods and services with a transaction 

            value between R10 000 and R500 000  

            were procured without obtaining

            written quotations from three different

            prospective suppliers                - 6,452

              7,329,293  6,919,356

*The 2014/15 irregular expenditure of R7,329,293 resulted from continuing with contracts which were 

identified as irregular by the Auditor-General in the 2011/12 financial year. The related expenditure was 

deemed irregular given the non-compliance to procurement policies and directives, whereas certain financial 

and procurement records were also stolen. 

Regarding the previous financial years, irregular expenditure of R30,329,402 was condoned by the Accounting 

Authority.
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24. Audit and Risk Committee Remuneration

  Names of Committee Members

2015

Committee 
Fees

Travel 
Expenses

Total 
Remuneration

Denis Braithwaite - Chairperson 106,168 1,866 108,034

Phuti Semenya 71,128 1,493 72,621

Mantuka Maisela 92,898 2,207 95,105

Kumaran Naidoo ( Representative of the dti) - - -

270,194 5,566 275,760

 Names of Committee Members

2014

Committee 
Fees

Travel 
Expenses

Total 
Remuneration

Denis Braithwaite – Chairperson 152,372 2,435 154,807

Phuti Semenya 102,416 1,432 103,848

Dikgale Franklin 19,478 72 19,550

Mantuka Maisela 190,045 3,485 193,530

Kumaran Naidoo ( Representative of the dti) - - -

464,311 7,424 471,735

25. Executive Management remuneration

 Names of Management

2015

Basic Salary Pension 
Fund Other Total 

Remuneration

Ebrahim Mohamed – Commissioner 1,099,178 142,893 328,183 1,570,254

Thezi Mabuza – Deputy Commissioner 841,199 109,356 245,316 1,195,871

Anton van der Merwe – Head of Corporate Ser-
vices (9-months) 319,875 41,584 51,349 412,808

David Ngoako Railo – Head of Research 658,028 85,544 353,252 1,096,824

Prudence Moilwa – Head of Investigations 594,374 77,269 318,857 990,500

Andy Thupayalatse – Head of Legal 594,374 77,269 318,857 990,500

Phumeza Mlungu – Head of Investigations and 
Awareness 594,374 77,269 318,857 990,500

Narain Kuljeeth – Company Secretary 691,706 89,922 206,524 988,152

5,393,108 701,106 2,141,195 8,235,409
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  Name of Management

2014

Basic Salary Pension Fund Other Total 
Remuneration

Ebrahim Mohamed – Commissioner 1,005,688 130,740 219,121 1,355,549

Thezi Mabuza – Deputy Commissioner

(2-months) 132,640 17,243 28,549 178,432

Kgabo Mantsho – Chief Financial Officer 557,787 72,512 299,346 929,645

David Ngoako Railo – Head of Research 619,792 80,573 323,851 1,024,216

Prudence Moilwa – Head of Investigations 557,787 72,512 299,607 929,906

Andy Thupayalatse – Head of Legal 557,787 72,512 299,607 929,906

Phumeza Mlungu – Head of Investigations and 
Awareness 557,787 72,512 298,461 928,760

3,989,268 518,604 1,768,542 6,276,414

26. Related Party Relationships- Nature

(a) Non-Executive: Audit and Risk Committee Members:

The names of the Audit and Risk Committee Members have been disclosed in Note 24 above.

(b) Executive Management:

The names of all Executive Managers have been disclosed in Note 25 above.

(c) Executive Authority: Department of Trade and Industry

The NCC is a National Public Entity reporting to the Minister of Trade and Industry. The Department of Trade 

and Industry, including its trading entities are related parties of the NCC. These include the following entities:

National Consumer Tribunal, Companies and Intellectual Property Commission, Companies Tribunal, South 

African Bureau of Standards, National Regulator for Compulsory Standards, National Credit Regulator, National 

Gambling Board, National Lotteries Board, Small Enterprise Development Agency, National Empowerment 

Fund, South African National Accreditation System, National Metrology Institute of South Africa and Export 

Credit Insurance Corporation of South Africa.
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27. Related Party Transactions- Amount

(a) Non-Executive Board Members and the Audit and Risk Committee Members:

The total value of all transactions in respect of the Audit and Risk Committee Members are disclosed 

in Note 24 above.

(b) Executive Management:

The total value of all transactions in respect of Executive Management is disclosed in Note 25 above.

(c) Executive Authority: Minister of Trade and Industry

The following amounts were received from the Department of Trade and Industry:

March        March

2015          2014
                                                                                                            
                R                                  R

Grant Received           53, 376,000 44,516,000

Assets transferred from the dti     - 20,270

Other Transfers Received - 961,824

Total          53,376,000 45,498,094

28. Prior period errors

  The following prior year errors were identified and adjustments passed.

  Staff debtor: Error in the closing entry that relate to prior year.

Property, Plant and Equipment: The error relates to the correction in respect of depreciation expense.
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The effect of the error on the 2014 result is as follows:

March        March

2015        2014
Statement of Financial Position                                                                                 R                                  R

Accumulated depreciation: Computer equipment - (2,305)

Staff debtor -  16,581

14,276

Statement of financial performance                                                                                

Depreciation expense - 2,305

Profit and loss on disposal of assets - (16,581)

(14,276)
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PART 5:  HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 
5.1  Human Resources Oversight Statistics

Personnel Cost by programme

Programme Total 
expenditure 
of the entity

Personnel 
Expenditure 

Personnel exp. as 
a % of total exp.

No. of employees Average personnel 
cost per employee 

Programme 1 8,085,000 7,965,961 98% 29 278,793

Programme 2 21,482,000 21,424,698 99% 43 499,581

Programme 3 3,233,000 3,214,000 99% 10 323,300

TOTAL 32,800,000 32,604,659 99% 82 1,101,674

Programme 1: Corporate Services and Office of the Commissioner (Administration)

Programme 2: Enforcement and Investigation, Legal Services

Programme 3: Research, Analysis and knowledge Management,  Education, Compliance and Advocacy

Personnel cost by salary band Level

One employee resigned during 2013/2014 financial year, however, his leave gratuity was paid during 2014/2015 financial year 
and that had a bearing on the personnel expenditure for 2014/2015.

Level Total 
expenditure 
for the entity

Personnel 
Expenditure 

% of personnel 
exp. to total 
personnel cost 

No. of employees Average personnel 
cost per employee 

Top Management 3,100,000 3,005,620 97% 2 1,550,000

Senior 
Management

13,840,000 13,837,088 99% 17 814,117

Professionally 
qualified

6,300,000 6,277,419 99% 19 331,578

Skilled 720,000 710,015 97% 4 180,000

Semi-skilled 8,840,000 8,774,517 99% 40 221,000

TOTAL 32,800,000 32,604,659 99% 82 3,096,695

Top management (Salary level 15-16)

· Senior Management (Salary level 13-14)

· Professionally Qualified (Salary level 9-12)

· Skilled ( Salary level 7-8)

· Semi-skilled (Salary level 5-6)
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Performance Rewards

Programme Total personnel
expenditure

Performance rewards Personnel expenditure % of performance 
rewards to total 
personnel cost 

Programme 1 12 530 790 1 44,604 0.36%

Programme 2 14 949 415 0 0 0%

Programme 3  5 125 253 0 0 0%

TOTAL 32 605 458 0 44,604 0.36%

Only one employee qualified for the performance reward for 2013/14 performance cycle.

The performance management system implemented by the NCC was effective from 01 April 2014. Thus, performance rewards 

for 2014/15 financial year, where applicable, will be finalised in the next financial year.

Training Costs

Directorate/ 
Business Unit

Total personnel 
expenditure (R’000)

Training 
expenditure

(R’000)

Training 
expenditure as a % 
of personnel Cost.

No. of 
employees 

trained

Avg training 
cost per 

employee

All Directorates 32,604,659 151 962 0,47% 49 3 101

32,604,659 151 962 0,47% 49 3 101

 

Employment and vacancies

Programme 2013/2014 No. of 
Employees

2014/2015 
Approved Posts

2014/2015 No. of 
Employees

2014/2015 
Vacancies

% of Vacancies

Top Management 2 2 2 0 0%

Senior 
Management

14 22 17 5 23%

Professional 
qualified

16 65 18 46 72%

Skilled 1 24 4 20 83%

Semi-skilled 40 69 40 29 42%

TOTAL 73 182 81 100 -

There are 182 posts in an approved structure but only 83 posts are funded. 

Out of 83 funded posts, 76 are filled. As at 31 March 2014 the NCC was at 8% vacancy rate

Programme 2013/2014 No. of 
Employees

2014/2015 
Approved Posts

2014/2015 No. of 
Employees

2014/2015 
Vacancies

% of vacancies

Programme 1 15 42 29 13 31%

Programme 2 40 72 43 29 40%

Programme 3 18 68 10 58 85%

Total 73 182 82 100
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Employment changes:

 The following tables provide information on changes in employment over the financial year. The turnover rate at the NCC was 

very low in the year, in that only one person had resigned

Salary Band Employment at 

beginning of period

Appointments Terminations Employment at end of 

the period

Top Management 2 0 0 2

Senior Management 14 3 2 15

Professional qualified 16 2 2 16

Skilled 1 3 0 4

Semi-skilled 40 0 1 39

TOTAL 73 8 5 76

Top Management (Salary level 15-16)

Senior Management (Salary level 13-14)

Professionals (Salary level 9-12)

Skilled (Salary level 7-8)

Semi –skilled (Salary level 5-6) 

Reasons for staff leaving

Number % of total no. of staff leaving Number

Death 0 0

Resignation 6% 5

Dismissal 0 0

Retirement 0 0

Ill health 0 0

Expiry of contract 0 0

Other 0 0

Total 6% 5

Labour Relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action

Nature of disciplinary Action Number

Verbal Warning 1

Written Warning 4

Final Written warning 1

Dismissal 0

Ongoing disciplinary process 10

Total 16
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Equity Target and Employment Equity Status

Levels MALE

African Coloured Indian White

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top 

Management

0 0 1 0

Senior 

Management

9 0 1 1

Professional 

qualified

6 1 0 0

Skilled 1 0 0 0

Semi-skilled 20 0 0 0

TOTAL 36 1 2 1

Levels FEMALE

African Coloured Indian White

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top 

Management

1 0 0 0

Senior 

Management

4 0 0 0

Professional 

qualified

9 0 0 0

Skilled 3 0 0 0

Semi-skilled 19 0 0 0

TOTAL 36 0 0 0

Levels DISABLED STAFF

African Coloured Indian White

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top 

Management

0 0 0 0

Senior 

Management

0 0 0 0

Professional 

qualified

0 0 0 0

Skilled 0 0 0 0

Semi-skilled 1 0 0 0

TOTAL 1 0 0 0
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NCC had defined equity targets per gender and disability groupings without narrowing it down to salary levels.

With regard to the overall gender target of 50 percent of women, the NCC has 48 per cent of female employees. Male 

employees make up 52 per cent of the total employees. 

LIST OF ACRONYMS/ ABBREVIATIONS

CCRD Consumer and Corporate Regulation Division

CPA/ Consumer Protection Act Consumer Protection Act No. 68 of 2008

Executive Authority /the dti Department of Trade and Industry

GRAP Generally Recognised Accounting Practices

IT Information Technology

PFMA Public Finance Management Act, 1999, Act No. 1 of 1999

Plan Fraud Prevention Plan

NCC The National Consumer Commission

NRCS National Regulator for Compulsory Standards

NCR National Credit Regulator

Portfolio Committee Portfolio Committee on Trade and Industry
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